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Belle Property Lane Cove / Hunters Hill 
 
lanecove.info@belleproperty.com 
(02) 9087 3333 
www.bellepoperty.com./lanecove 
 
Belle Property Lane Cove / Hunters Hill is Lane Cove 
Cricket Club’s major sponsor for 3 seasons, 
commencing 2015/16. We recommend all Lane Cove 
Cricket members, family and friends contact Simon 
Harrison at Belle Property for any of your buying / 
selling / renting real estate needs. 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Kookaburra 
 
info@kooka.com.au 
03 8552 1111 
www.kookaburra.biz 
 
Lane Cove Cricket Club is delighted to announce 
Kookaburra as a major sponsor of the club for the 
2015/16 season. Kookaburra provided Lane Cove with 
its new playing and training gear for the season, and is 
the recommended choice of cricket gear for the club. 
Contact Cameron Eve for any of your Kookaburra 
needs. 
 
 

 
 

 

The Longueville Sporting Club 
 
gm@longuevillesportingclub.com.au 
(02) 9427 2210 
www.longuevillesportingclub.com.au 
 
Lane Cove Cricket Club is proud to make the 
Longueville Sporting Club its social venue of choice.  
Various functions are held at the LSC during the 
season and the players can also be found there 
celebrating after each and every match during the 
season. 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 

 
Storage King 

 
(02) 9420 2220 
www.storagelanecove.com.au 
 
Welcome to the largest self storage facility on Sydney's 
North Shore. We provide safe, clean, secure storage for 
your personal and business needs. 
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Kim Best Life Member of the Lane Cove Cricket Club. 

 
In early 2019 we lost a stoic member of our club. Renowned for his many battles on and finally off the field, 
respected by all he conducted himself with commitment, purpose and dedication. 
He was a true ‘Covie’. 
 
As a player he quickly gained a reputation for fight, determination and ability. Originally introduced as a 
junior and at 19 was elevated to the top side where he remained until family life relocated him to the central 
coast.  
 
His statistics stark and overwhelmingly impressive: 

• 8,109 runs, all but a handful not in the top side. 
• Average 28.96 
• Highest score 116 
• Centuries, 4 all in first grade. 
• Innings 283 and games, just short of 300. 
• He also held the 1st wicket record of 221 set in 1984/85 with Tony Murphy. 

He captained the top side for many seasons, his greatest disappointment that he never achieved a 
premiership, and the final we lost in 1984/85. 
 
An opening batsman by choice he will be remembered by his 
hallmark legside play. In the 15 seasons that I had the pleasure 
of playing with him there would be but a few cover drives, and 
somehow the opposition never quiet picked it up. The average 
supports the story. 
A tough and often uncompromising competitor he never wore a 
thigh pad or gave in. 
 
Off the field, same outstanding qualities. He was honoured with 
life membership in 1994 after many years serving the club. As 
committeeman, treasurer and sometimes groundsman. His 
commitment always present, at one stage there was a ritual 
where local juveniles took great pleasure on Friday nights 
attacking the Longueville wicket. A select committee of three 
was established, he led the charge literally, sleeping at the oval 
one such night ‘The committee’ were awakened by the 
intruders. The culprits quickly apprehended and delivered to the 
Lane Cove Police Station.  
 
During the 2017/18 season he wished to return to his club and spend some time watching the 1St, this was 
done. He met some of the players and opposition supporters, many of whom he played against.  
 
 
Vale Kim Best 
 
16 July,2019 

 
 



 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 2018/2019 

 
 
Dear Lane Cove Cricket Club member, 
 
 
I am pleased to provide the club with this season’s annual report as we continue to move forward as a strong, 
sustainable club from juniors through to seniors. 
 
Season 2018/19 continued the theme of previous seasons, with the juniors club continuing to thrive and the 
seniors slowly but surely becoming stronger on and off the field, contributing to our position as one of the 
strongest cricket clubs on the north shore. 
 
We continued to show strong financial performance, particularly with the funds from our end of season 
dinner, as well as an increase in seniors fees. Our major sponsor Belle Property continues to be a fantastic 
partner for the club – thank you to Simon Harrison and his team for your ongoing support. 
 
Thank you also to Kookaburra and Cameron Eve (former Lane Cove player) for their ongoing support as our 
secondary sponsor and equipment and apparel partner. 
 
I want to share with you my highlight of the season, which occurred in 2nd grade’s stellar season which took 
them through to the semi final. Defending just 68 against Auburn, the Covies showed a huge amount of 
character to fight their way back into the game which was led by youngster Ben Greaves who took 10 
wickets for the match including 7/21 in the first innings. We fell short of getting the win, but to see a Lane 
Cove junior step up and lead the fightback was what this club is all about. 
 
A big thanks goes out to Damian Barbeler who took over the reigns of the juniors and was a fantastic 
addition to the running of the club. In particular Damian made a big effort to bridge the gap between juniors 
and seniors which made a significant difference to the club. I would also like to acknowledge the Junior Sub 
Committee who put in a huge amount of work and are vital in ensuring the success of the juniors, and also to 
John Lloyd for his assistance running 
In2Cricket which is a crucial part of the 
development of the juniors.  
 
And of course all of the players, coaches 
and parents for your hard work and 
dedication over the course of the season. 
Thank you for contributing to this great 
club. 
 
I would also like to say a huge thank you to 
Jarrod Rixon who was the club’s secretary 
for the last time in season 2017/18. Jarrod 
has been instrumental in the runaround of 
the club over the past few years and we will 
miss him as he embarks on his UK 
adventure. 
 
To the seniors captains, thank you for your tireless effort on and off the field. Even though We struggled for 
player numbers throughout the season and despite this, the captain of each grade did a great job in keeping 
things together under trying circumstances. 
 



To Peter Blood (2s), Nick Mytkowski (3s), Andrew Bray (4s), and Nick Kelland (24s) – thank you for your 
hard work and support throughout the season. 
 
Also thank you to the Committee who put in the hard yards to ensure the club ran smoothly over the course 
of the season. And kudos to all who helped run our training sessions throughout the year. 
 
Finally a big thank you to Lane Cove Council – Susan Butler, Craig Wrightson (General Manager) Bryan 
and Daniel. It is a pleasure to play cricket at our grounds, and we continue to have some of the best grounds 
in Shires Cricket in Tantallon and Longueville. 
 
 
Looking forward to another successful season next year! 
 
 
Best regards, 
 

Damian Naughton 
 
Damian Naughton 
 
LCCC President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 
TREASURER’S REPORT 2018/2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The 2018/19 season was a strong season for the Lane Cove Cricket Club, with a return to profit.  
 
Whilst there had been challenges with growth in Senior players in the past, there was a noticeable 
increase in Senior subscriptions, which was of benefit to the club in a year where junior members 
subscriptions have plateaued.  While the number of junior teams continues to be strong, our financial 
security is dependent on maintaining this into future years. 
  
For the year ended 30 April 2019 the Club returned a net profit of $.  This profit is also improved by 
the fact that we are holding larger stocks of player clothing which will be utilised in the 2019 year.  I 
note that while operational expenses continue to rise over time, appropriate measures have resulted 
in maintaining an acceptable level of expenditure, however, continued focus is critical. 
 
Ground Hire and increased NSJCA fees continue to be the club’s largest expense, and any material 
increase in these will result in financial pressure on the club that may see the increase of player 
subscriptions. 
 
Significant consideration will need to be given to the level of player subscriptions in 2019, which 
may result in a fee increase to ensure the clubs viability. 
 
It’s pleasing to see newcomers to the Club and the sport of Cricket and the Club needs to ensure that 
a lot of time and effort is invested into the future of the Club, being the junior teams.   
 
I would like to thank our sponsors and supporters for their continued support in the sport of cricket, 
and the Lane Cove Cricket Club. 
 
The Club continues to maintain its financial position and we are well positioned for growth.  As a 
Club, we have access to the best training and playing facilities in the broader Sydney community.  I 
would like to thank all those involved from captains, junior representatives, coaches, players, parents 
and generally anyone who has continued to carry on the fine traditions of the Lane Cove Cricket Club. 
  
  
Paul Bakker 
 
Paul Bakker 
Hon. Treasurer 



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income   
For the year ended 30 April 2019   
 

  
  Note  2019  2018 
    $  $ 
       

The above statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes 

1 

Revenue    146,284  124,903  
  
Expenses       
       
Clothing & Merchandise    (37,141)  (33,375) 
Depreciation expense    ()  (374) 
Equipment & Balls    (15,484)  (15,232) 
Ground Fees    (30,323)  (29,864) 
Registration Fees    (27,170)  (26,700) 
Trophies    (4,781)  (4,545) 
Other    (24,603)  (3,978) 
  
Surplus/(Deficit) before income tax expense    6,782  10,840  
  
Income tax expense    -   -  
  
Surplus after income tax expense for the year attributable to the 
members of the Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated 

 
 

 
6,782 

 
10,840  

  

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax    -   -  
  
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the members 
of the Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated 

 
 

 
6,782 

 
10,840  

  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Statement of financial position   
As at 30 April 2019   
 

  
  Note  2019  2018 
    $  $ 
       

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
2 

Assets       
       
Current assets       
Cash and cash equivalents    13,842  8,835 
Trade and other receivables    11,625  10,200  
Stock    12,350  12,000 
Total current assets    37,817  31,035  
       
Non-current assets       
Property, plant and equipment    68,058   68,058  
Accumulated Depreciation    (60,168)  (60,168) 
Total non-current assets    7,890   7,890 
       
Total assets    45,707  38,925 
  

Liabilities       
       
Current liabilities       
Trade and other payables    0   0 
Total current liabilities    0   0 
       
       
Total liabilities    0   0 
  
Net assets    45,707  38,925  
  

Equity       
Opening Retained surpluses    38,925  62,263  
Profit/(Loss)    6,782  (23,338)  
       
       
Total equity    45,707  38,925  
  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Statement of changes in equity   
For the year ended 30 April 2019   
 

  

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
3 

  Retained  
  surpluses  
  $  
    
Balance at1 May 2018  38,925   
    
Surplus/(Deficit) after income tax expense for the year  6,782   
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -  
    
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  6,782  
    
Balance at 30 April 2019  45,707   
  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Notes to the financial statements   
30 April 2019   
 

  

  
4 

Note 1. Significant accounting policies 
  
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
  
New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 
The incorporated association has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current 
reporting period. 
  
Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been 
early adopted. 
  
Basis of preparation 
In the officers' opinion, the incorporated association is not a reporting entity because there are no users dependent 
on general purpose financial statements. 
  
These are special purpose financial statements that have been prepared for the purposes of complying with the New 
South Wales legislation the Associations Incorporation Act 2009, the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and associated 
regulations. The officers have determined that the accounting policies adopted are appropriate to meet the needs of 
the members of the Lane Cove Cricket Club Inc. 
  
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements 
specified by the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards 
Board ('AASB') and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial Statements', AASB 107 
'Statement of Cash Flows', AASB 108 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', AASB 
1031 'Materiality', AASB 1048 'Interpretation of Standards' and AASB 1054 'Australian Additional Disclosures', as 
appropriate for not-for-profit oriented entities. 
  
Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the incorporated association and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 
  
Sales revenue 
Events, fundraising and raffles are recognised when received or receivable. 
  
Donations 
Donations are recognised at the time the pledge is made. 
  
Grants 
Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and 
all attached conditions will be complied with. 
  
Interest 
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating 
the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective 
interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. 
  
Other revenue 
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established. 
  
Income tax 
As the incorporated association is a charitable institution in terms of subsection 50-5 of the Income Tax Assessment 
Act 1997, as amended, it is exempt from paying income tax. 
  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Notes to the financial statements   
30 April 2019   
 

  
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
  

  
5 

Current and non-current classification 
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current 
classification. 
  
An asset is current when: it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting 
period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 
at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current. 
  
A liability is current when: it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of 
trading; it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or there is no unconditional right to 
defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified 
as non-current.  
  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current. 
  
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
  
Trade and other receivables 
Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any provision for impairment. 
  
Property, plant and equipment 
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
  
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and equipment 
(excluding land) over their expected useful lives as follows: 
  
Buildings  40 years 
Freehold improvements  15 years 
Plant and equipment  3-7 years 
Motor vehicles  5-7 years 
Office equipment  3-5 years 
  
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
reporting date. 
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit 
to the incorporated association. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken 
to profit or loss. 
  
Impairment of non-financial assets 
Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
  
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use 
is the present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to 
the asset or cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are 
grouped together to form a cash-generating unit. 
  



Lane Cove Cricket Club Incorporated   
Notes to the financial statements   
30 April 2019   
 

  
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
  

  
6 

Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the incorporated association prior to the end 
of the financial year and which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and 
are not discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 
  
Fair value measurement 
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, 
the fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place 
either: in the principle market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. 
  
Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming they act in their economic best interest. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on 
its highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the 
use of unobservable inputs. 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of The Lane Cove Cricket Club Inc. 
Report on the financial report 

 
I have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, 
of the Lane Cove Cricket Club Inc., which comprises the statement of financial position 
as at 30 April 2019, the statement of profit or loss for the year then ended, notes 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and the officers’  assertion statement. 
 
Officers’ responsibility for the financial report  
 
The officers of the Lane Cove Cricket Inc. are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report, and have determined that the basis of preparation 
described in Note 1, is appropriate to meet the requirements of the Act and is appropriate 
to meet the needs of the members. The officers’ responsibility also includes such internal 
control as the officers determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 
presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We 
have conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial report is free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the association’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
association’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the 
officers, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In my opinion, the financial report gives a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Lane Cove Cricket Club Inc. as at 30 April 2019, and its financial performance for the 
year then ended. 
 
Basis of accounting 
 



 

  
8 

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1to the financial report, which 
describes the basis of accounting. The financial report has been prepared to assist the Lane 
Cove Cricket Club Inc. to meet the requirements of the Act.  As a result, the financial 
report may not be suitable for another purpose  
 
 
FORDHAMS 
 
Darren Hill 
 
DARREN HILL 
Partner
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SEASON 2018/19 
 
SENIOR CLUB REPORTS  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
First Grade Report: 



 

  

 
We entered season 2018/19 with a lot of promise after falling one win short of the Grand Final last year. We 
were able to keep the same group of players together, with our overseas player Zen Malik being replaced by 
promising young talent Freddie Boys.  
 
We knew that the one big area for improvement was scoring more runs, and we started the season off well on 
that front, scoring 240 against Lindfield but were denied the opportunity for 6 points due to wet weather in 
week 2. 
 
After a disappointing result against Mounties at home after being sent in on a wet Tantallon wicket, we 
headed into round 3 against Roseville needing a win to stay in touch with the top 6.  
 
Roseville batted well to post a big score of 9/305 declared, and after a good start of 0/56 we limped to 8/195 
and looked to be staring down the barrel of another disappointing loss. Joe Scarcella joined me at the crease 
and we knew that there was an opportunity to do something special. Fast forward an hour or so and we 
completed a remarkable win with two wickets to spare, Joey making a lightning fast 65* to complement my 
110* at the other end. A 111-run partnership which equalled the club’s record for the 9th wicket. 
 
We were hoping that would kickstart our season, but a frustrating loss against Auburn meant that we were 
languishing outside the top 6 heading into a crucial game against Epping. We went from 1/0 to 1/166 with 
Freddie Boys (102) and myself (87) putting on a big partnership, eventually being bowled out for 281. 
Despite dominating Epping, we fell one wicket short of getting the 6 points and had to settle for a draw. 
 
We followed that effort up with a poor batting 
display against Warringah, and our season hit rock 
bottom in a dreadful effort against Mac Uni which 
is a game probably best never spoken of again. 
 
At the halfway point of the season it was all but 
over, and to rub salt into the wound we also lost 
Freddie to a broken finger. On the plus side, we 
had the best bowler in the competition Liam 
O’Hare to come back after gallivanting across 
Europe, coming back into the side for the second 
half of the year. 
 
We needed to be almost perfect after Christmas, and we started off with a close win against Balmain Souths, 
and a sensational win against Burwood where Joe Scarcella (5/36) stepped up as stand in skipper and 
combined with Slug (3/32) to rip through Burwood and defend our modest total of 131 by 10 runs. 
 
A crazy game at Strathfield ended with the Covies finishing agonisingly 1 wicket short of a win, which was 
the second time this season we settled for a draw with the opposition 9 wickets down. 
 
Despite winning the final two games against Penno and NWS, the draws ultimately caused our demise and 
we fell just short of finals. 
 
Onwards and upwards to next season! 
 
Damian Naughton 
 
1st Grade Captain 2018-19 
 
 
 
 



 

  

First Grade – 2018/2019 at a glance 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
First Grade – Batting 
 

First Grade – Bowling 

  



 

  

 
Second Grade Report 2018/19: 
 
What a ride this seaon was. Not sure how I'm going to jam it all into 3 minutes, but here we go. 
This season was all about bucking the trend of being perennial under-achivers. In my 4 seasons with the Covies, 
I can't remember a time where we havent fielded a 2nd grade side that shouldn't be playing finals cricket. 
However for one reason or another we would conitnue to come up short, and didn't seem to have that winning, 
hard-edged culture within the team, even though we continue to produce squads with as good talent as any 
other in the league. 
 
This year was the breakthrough we had been searching for! Although we weren't able to go all the way, I can 
comfortably say that this has been the most enjoyable season of cricket I've played in many years. We've had 
some awesome times out on the pitch this season, and I couldn't have asked for a better group of guys to share 
it with. Thanks boys! 
 
One of the other real highlights for me this season was some of the new players that we unearthed, along with 
some real improvements from players that we have watched develop over the past few seasons. To see new 
guys like Ravi Ravi (the man with 2 first names), 
Stu Perry, Robbo, Ol's & Harley come in and do 
such a great job and fit into the culture so well is 
such a great sign for the club. In addition to this, 
watching guys like Ben Greaves and Kensell 
really take their game to the next level is so 
exciting, and to see Raja & Dev absolutely 
dominate with the ball were some of the key 
reasons we were able to achieve the success we did 
(taking 72 wickets between them). Then to top it 
off we have created a really strong core ladership 
group in this team with the likes of Humey, 
Charlie & Dev all providing a steady influence not 
only on the field, but also off it.  
 
Now, on to the season‚Summary: Finished 4th on 
48 points through the regular season (this is a great 
achievement for us, especially consdering we lost 
our first 3 games). Up until the last round there was still a chance that with results going against us, we could 
have missed the 6.. this just highlights how close the competition was this year!  
 
Instead of re-capping our best games of the year, and listing out personal achievements, of which there were 
many, I thought I'd just focus on our semi-final match against Auburn. Although we ultimately fell short in 
this match, it had everything, and I certainly havent been involved in many games like it. 
Semi Final vs Auburn - To say that this semi-final was a rollercoaster ride would probably not be doing it 
justice. For those who didn't follow the results, I'll give you the quick re-cap‚ 
We lost the toss and were sent in on a reasonable, if not a little soggy deck 
We battled away for a painful 25 overs to eventually be bowled out for 68‚including 5 ducks and a 52-ball 35 
from Kensell‚needless to say, not the start we were after! 
In reply, we came out of the blocks fast, reducing Auburn to 6-20 (with Ben Greaves rushing to figures of 5-
11 in 6 overs), our standards with the ball and in the field during this period were as good as I've ever seen 
with this 2nd grade side! 
 
Auburn then managed to stablise their innings, eventually all out for 112 (Greavsey finishing with figures of 
7-21, and a couple of absolutely filthy send-offs to boot). 
We then entered our second innings trailing by 40-odd! Unfortuantely the next morning didn't go to plan and 
we lost continual wickets on our way to a total of 111 in 37 overs‚ 
 



 

  

 
Auburn needing 68 to win‚. Again, we came out of the blocks firing, with Greavsey picking up his maiden 
Covie 10-fa by taking a quick fire 3-5 in his first 4 overs‚ Auburn slumping to 4-19‚Greavsys 10-fa was 
definietly one of the highlights of the season‚ it's as good of a spell of fast bowling I've seen produced in 2's.  
At this point there was a glimmer of light that we may be able to pull off something miraculous.. I've never 
seen the boys more up and about then during that period of the match!! The feeling out on the field just tippified 
how close of a unit we have become this season, and I think collectivley we loved every second of it, however 
unfortuantely the class of the Auburn skipper shone through as he dragged them over the line. 
 
Although it wasn't anywhere near our best performance, I am still extremely proud that we were able to take 
Auburn right to the wire, and we certainly didn't leave anything out on the pitch. especially you Greavsey. 
 
It's also safe to say that we may have formed a "Healthy" rivallry with our good friends at Auburn! Looking 
forward to meeting them again next year for some more fun and games! 
All-in-all, an eventful and always 
enjoyable season. And I'm counting 
down the days until we get to do it 
all again! 
 
Stats: 
 
Bowling led by: 
Raja with 39 wickets @ 11! 
Dev not too far behind with 33 @ 9! 
 
Batting led by: 
Ravi with 321 runs 
Isaac with 253 runs in 2nd (noting 
he only played half a season in 2's) 
 
 
 
Peter Blood  
 
 
2nd Grade Captain 2018-19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
 
Second Grade – 2018/2019 at a glance 

 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
 
Second Grade – Batting 

 
Second Grade – Bowling 

 



 

  

 
Third Grade Report: 
 
My form with losing tosses in games that matter carried over to 2019. After being sent in on a green deck 
against the eventual wooden spooners Lindfield yielded very little apart from Schaafs top score in 3s for the 
season. 
 
After a forgettable game against SDs with another lost toss. I decided I needed a break against rivals 
Roseville. Earl took over, who then won the toss (bastard), only to bowl on a road. Kensell taking 5 poles 
with Greavsey and Crayn taking 4 each for the match. 
 
After winning my first toss in about 10 months and sending Auburn in. The game was evenly poised at 
before the tidiest man in the comp SG tore through the opening order. The over before drinks the rig himself 
snags 1, ready to go in on a high note we notice that the drinks aren’t ready, so we go back out to play. Bang 
another pole. The rig rounded out the innings with 5/18 from 8, first michelle for the club. Chasing 145, a 
measure of poise and grit was needed to knock off the pesky small total. All of which Kensell ignored and 
blasted the opening 2 overs for 40 runs….. on his way to score 
85 from 39 rocks. A composed Dowey scored 30*. Both to 
never be seen in 3rds again. 
 
Another week of batting on a seaming deck and bowling on a 
road at Epping left us with very little chance. Some sensational 
batting from the young gun duo of Ross “stumping” McFadyen 
and Ryan “run out” Devine got us to a defendable total.  
Sloppy fielding cost is in the end as Earl found his stride and 
took a remarkable 7/57 from 20 overs.  
 
After some very forgettable games before Christmas saw the 
emergence of the 2nd member of the ‘fanta special’ Felix 
Barbelar come into his own. With a 32* to see us home chasing 
120 against penno. A few 20s mixed in before a 61 against the 
defending premiers.  Saw Felix anchor the majority of the 3rds 
innings and deservedly finish the top run scorer for 3s.  
 
With Felix anchoring the batting, Earl was the anchor of the bowling. Ontop of being the unluckiest bowler 
to go around with missed chances week in and week out, he still had a career year claiming 3 consecutive 
ducks, firming himself as the favourite for the duck bat. We are still waiting for a night out in your whites. 
Earl finished with a great haul of 31 poles including 2 michelle’s. 
 
After Crayn decided to get blokes out instead of knocking their heads off. He finished with his best wicket 
total of 21 in 3s. 
 
The consistent additions of Rossco and Ryan saw to add a bit of steel in the middle to lower order and 
provide some sensational fielding moments. Mixed in with Stibs when he could get away from the gym saw 
some valuable runs. 
 
Another season of improvement saw the 3s yet again finish with more points than the previous year. 
 
Nick Mytkowski  
 
3rd Grade Captain 2018-19 
 
 



 

  

Third Grade – 2018/2019 at a glance 
 

 
 



 

  

 
Third Grade – Batting 

 
Third Grade – Bowling 

 
 
 
 



 

  

 
Fourth Grade Report: 
A lot can be said about the 2018/2019 Lane Cove 4th Grade season. On paper, it was not a wonderful year. 1 win from 
13 games. Not a stellar year in anyone’s book. But you need to look past the results to see where the success lied for the 
4th grade team. Even though success is normally measured with wins versus losses, there were a lot of positives that 
must be taken from the year. These positives are the building blocks that future success, and ultimately wins, will be 
made from and must be recognised now that we have come to the end of yet a another wonderful Covie year. The term 
“a rebuilding phase” is often written off as a cliché, however, in the case of Lane Cove 4th Grade, the statement can be 
considered more than apt. Despite being in a “rebuilding phase” for some time, some real progress was made this year 
in a number of areas. Junior progression, player consistency, competitiveness, and training participation were all 
highlights this year and something that we are looking to build on for next year. 

One of the key focuses this year for the 4th grade team was to create easier pathways from the junior club into seniors 
cricket. We have taken some great steps forward in this respect and a significant factor in this has been the work put in 
by Damian Barbeler in particular. By introducing a number of juniors to the senior teams and assisting in many of them 
being selected for 4s and Tim Creer Cup, we now have a clear pathway for these talented juniors to take the next step in 
their cricketing lives and make the transition to the senior teams. I cannot thank Damian enough for the assistance that 
he was this year, from simply having the 16/17s train with the senior teams to making them available for selection to 
finding juniors to fill in at short notice for the senior teams, his efforts we appreciated immensely. 

A number of these juniors provided some of the greatest highlights of the season as well. We do not have to look too far 
into the season to see the impact the juniors made on the 4th grade side. In the first round of the season we got a 
glimpse of what might be to come with two fantastic contributions from junior players. Firstly, despite not being a 
Lance Cove junior, the bowling effort of 13 year old Dylan Ranjan to take 6/66 from 14 overs all while Lindfield were 
belting us around KSO was more than impressive. For such a young Leggie to have the composure and skill to land leg 
spin consistently while much older men were dispatching bowlers around the park shows what sort of talent these kids 
have.  

Along with Dylan’s effort, the only other highlight of being a game that turned out to be a draw was the batting of 17 
year old Carson Forrest. Carson had his first year in the senior club this year after playing all the way through the junior 
club. Despite being picked to open the bowling and bat 11, as Fat Skip thought he was medium pace bowler, Carson’s 
efforts opening the batting and bowling Leg Spin (yes Fat Skip got that one wrong) started what would be an impressive 
season for Carson. A Slick looking 40 would lay the platform for the player that would ultimately be the leading run 
scorer for the 4s this year. Despite having a very lean run with the bat after Christmas, Carson’s efforts with the bat, 
bowl and in the field had a major impacting on the fortunes of the 4s this year and while still having some aspects to 
work on, Carson shows a lot of promise to become a very solid cricketer in higher grades in the years to come. 

Another highlight provided by the juniors this year was in our one and only win for the season against eventual Grand 
Finalists Strathfield. After rolling Strathfield for 117, lead by the returning Cameron Bezer with 5 wickets and Harry 
Shaw with a 4, the Covies were confident to knock off the runs to get the first points of the season. At 6 for 80 it was in 
the balance when young Ethan Mudalier-Bek walked to the crease to replace Brendon Hood who had to take a break 
from the hot humid conditions. Ethan batted beautifully to guild us to the winning runs. The most impressive that he 
showed was not his technique however, it was his mindset. For a 15 year old kid, playing in his first Shires game 
against a seasoned older outfit, who don’t mind a chat, showed a mentality well beyond his years. While he may only 
have scored 26, he faced well over 100 rocks, something not many of the senior guys could do all season, to put us in a 
position to get the biscuits. Despite taking 21 overs on day 2 to make the 17 runs required, Ethan lead us to a great 
victory and once again showed the talent that we have coming through the club that will prove to be the mainstay of the 
club in general in the years to come. 

Despite only winning 1 game this year there were also a number of other major highlights throughout the year. I have 
listed a number of them below 

• Mark Schaafsma’s 53 from 198 rocks against Roseville. Schaafs batted for over 60 overs in an innings that saw 
the 4s bat through an entire day for the first time in my memory. Despite proclaiming that he needed a new bat 



 

  

as he could not get it off the square and even while having his hands cramp up, Schaafs showed tremendous 
composure and fight to lay a platform for the rest of us to bat around. Unfortunately, we could not get the win 
after having them 8/150 chasing our 200, drop catches costing us dearly. 

• The Return of Cameron Bezer. After a few years in the wilderness, Bezer returned to the Covies and proved 
that despite being a few yards slower in pace, he can still get the job done. Two 5 wicket hauls including a 7/35 
from a 20 over spell against Pennant Hills, contributed to him running away with the 4th grade bowling award. 

• The First ever Ranjan/Ranjan Wicket. As above young 13 year old Dylan Ranjan came to the club with 
immediate effect, however, after a number of months cajoling, Dylan’s father, Darpan, was convinced to come 
out of retirement to play some cricket with his son. To see the excitement on the older Ranjan’s face when he 
managed to take a stumping off his sons bowling reminded us all of our love of the game. 

• The club getting around our win against Strathfield. It is not very often that we get a win in 4s and it is not very 
often that our games go longer than the other grades so it was great to see all the other grades get down to KSO 
to cheer us on while we batted out the day to be able to sing the song for the first and last time this year. Even 
though some of the guys had to have the lyrics printed out for them it was the great to see the club come 
together as we know it always does. 

Lastly there is just a few people I would like to mention and thank for the assistance that have provided throughout the 
year. As above, if it was not for the help of Damian Barbeler, fielded many of the teams that we did this year, been as 
competitive as we were or seen the development of the juniors through the grades. 

As always Brendon Hood for always being around to help out whenever needed. From pulling the covers off early 
doors so we can get a start, helping get players, organising clean ups, supplies and the things you need to get on the park 
and even playing some cricket this year, Hoody was always there when needed. Putting 4th grade on the park each 
week would not have been possible with the 
assistance of Dave Fagan in getting the teams 
together. So many times, when we had someone 
pull out on a Friday night, to have a replacement 
by the next morning was unbelievable. Despite 
stealing my spot at first slip, I could not have done 
it without him. 

Throughout the year, despite being stolen by 3rd 
grade a few times, Marc Fini has always been a 
great assistance and vice-captain. From stepping up 
to skipper when I could not play, making 
suggestions in the field and helping wrangle the 
heard of cats that 4s sometimes is, Fini’s impact on 
4s and the club is inspiring, however, I will beat 
him in the Fat Race next year…. 

There is many more that I cannot name but thank 
you all that have played or contributed to 4s this year and I look forward to a bigger and better 2019/20. 

Andrew Bray  

4th Grade Captain 2018-19 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
 
Fourth Grade – 2018/2019 at a glance  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
Fourth Grade – Batting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
Fourth Grade – Bowling 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
 
Frank Gray Shield Report: 
 
The U/24’s Frank Gray Shield competition in Sydney Shires cricket is a weird beast. 
 
Played on Sundays, often after long days standing in the field on the Saturday before, seasons are 
underscored by momentum swings, big ups and downs, and, often, no two weeks where the XI that takes the 
field is the same as the round previous. 
 
The LCCC U/24’s side for season 2018/19 was the 
most enjoyable I’ve played in in my time at the club. 
 
Bringing in a raft of new faces to pair with old heads 
at the club made for a competitive roster that pushed 
hard in each and every game we played.  
 
Game one against tournament favourites Epping was 
a heartbreaker. Chasing 220, we were cruising at 
3/190 with 8 overs to run, before a catastrophic 
collapse saw us fall two runs short. Freddie Boys 
scored a big hundred,but couldn’t drag us across the 
line. 
 
We followed that up with wins against Pennant Hills and Roseville, our finals chances very much still alive. 
 
Injuries then depleted us. Boys broke his finger, Kelland did his back, others travelled overseas, and a loss 
against Macquarie Uni left us 2 and 2, with our season in the balance.  
 
A win against Lindfield then followed, before a last round loss against Warringah acted as the final nail in 
our proverbial coffin.  
 
A special congratulations must go to Jack Gibson who finished third in the overall player of the season votes, 
and contributed well with both bat and ball. 
 
Overall, it was a season full of positives, but one that ultimately just fell short of expectations. 
 
With a roster returning next season, and most still 
of-age, we will look to push deeper, and return 
Frank back to LCCC for another year.  
 
 
Nick Kelland 
 
Frank Gray Captain 2018-19 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  



 

  

 
Frank Gray – 2018/2019 at a glance  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
 
Frank Gray – Batting 

 
Frank Gray – Bowling 



 

  

 
 
Fifth Grade Report 
 
The season started off promising, with the only thing getting in our way of a win against Epping being our 
run rate. Otherwise, we lasted the full 40 overs with wickets in hand. With the next two games being rained 
out without a result, round 4 provided an exciting venture for the boys. Bowling first, we had restricted 
Macquarie to 40-odd by drinks, and we went into the 20 overs prior to drinks with high hopes. 
Unfortunately, some quality batting from the opposition blew out the total that we had to chase, and we again 
came off without the win. Special mention to junior Oliver Huszczo for his 4/31 in his first senior game. 
 
The next few rounds proved testing for the Covies as we were faced with producing low totals in the first 
innings, or having to chase some impressive totals by the opposition. Although a stand out moment for the 
season was seeing another one of our juniors, Seb Ranasinghe, get 5/26 in round 7 against Roseville. We had 
a small glimmer of hope in round 10, which saw Lane Cove get their highest total for the season to date. We 
set 170 in the 40 overs, with an unbeaten 53 from Ryan Devine. In the second innings, we had them 3/58, 
with real hopes that we’d be able to snatch out first win of the season. Unfortunately, we did not expect a 
boost in quality from their middle overs and alas, they managed to surpass our total with 13 overs remaining. 
 
Another few rounds rolled on, with us asking the question if we would every be able to experience the glory 
of victory. Then came Australia Day. It was 44 
degrees, humid day and a Saturday game. I am 
sure there were many other places the players 
would preferred to be. Never the less, with the 
win off the toss, we found ourselves batting first, 
making the most of the shade while the sun was at 
its hottest. Everyone had it easy as the openers 
toiled away to get us a helpful opening stand of 68 
runs. Masters regular Anthony Gill saw himself 
out for an impressive total of 72, and a 60-run 
partnership towards the end between John Lyons 
and Yash Samant saw the Covies with a very 
defendable total of 183. With the sun easing off as 
the afternoon rolled in, Lane Cove went onto the 
field with great confidence, and again flirting with 
the idea of our first potential win. At 6/100, we 
only needed 4 wickets within 82 runs to see us 
take the game out in torturous conditions. But as 
the overs rolled on, it took us 68 runs to take our 
seventh wicket, and by that time, we knew we were losing the strong grip we had on the match. Poor 
bowling discipline, coupled with the odd fielding error saw Auburn arrive at our total, shattering the hearts of 
the Lane Cove faithful. 
 
Unfortunately, we saw out the rest of the season without a win, despite the quality of players not reflecting 
the results. Ultimately though, the boys all had a great season, with the juniors getting to play some extra 
cricket on a weekend with some mates, while getting good experience of what it is like at the senior level. At 
the end of 22 games, none of the boys, regardless of age cared that there wasn’t a single tally in the “wins” 
column. For them it was all about the cricket. Being able to play for the love of having a hit and a trundle on 
a Sunday afternoon with their mates, and I think that is the thing that stands out the most for me as captains, 
and it’s a reflection on the culture of Lane Cove Cricket Club. 
 
Dan Kwon 
 
5th Grade Captain 2018-19 
 



 

  

 
Fifth Grade – 2018/19 at a Glance 

 

 
 

 
 
 



 

  

 
Fifth Grade – Batting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
Fifth Grade – Bowling 
 

 



 

  

 
APPENDIX 

 
CLUB RECORDS 

 
OFFICE BEARERS OF THE CLUB 

 
PRESIDENT: 
 
1904-1919 H.C. Catt 
1919-1937 J.W. Tomlin 
1937-1941 A.B. Campbell 
1941-1948 H.R. Alder 
1948-1961 M.M. Wilson 
1961-1968 J.B. Hollander 
1968-1982 J.F. Dettmann 
1982-1985 A. Harris 
1985-1989 P. Bullock 

1989-1990 B.A. Scott 
1990-1992 P.W. Watkins 
1992-1996 B.A. Scott  
1996-1999       I. Green 
1999-2000 A. Kelleher 
2000-2009    J.F. Lloyd 
2009-2010    G. Boyle 
2010-2013    B. Hood 
2013-2019 D. Naughton 

 
HONORARY SECRETARY: 
 
1904-1908 W.J. Hanley 
1908-1909 C.R. Cornwell 
1909-1912 W.J. Turner 
1912-1914 R.H. Henniker 
1914-1915 G.R. Dettmann 
1915-1919 W.J. Turner 
1919-1922 G.R. Dettman 
1922-1927 C.L. Fox 
1927-1929 J.B. Stack 
1929-1933 E.L. Tyler 
1933-1934 G.R. Dettmann 
1934-1935 A.S. Luke 
1935-1938 G.R. Dettmann 
1938-1940 M.M. Wilson 
1940-1942 J.B. Hollander 
1942-1946 M.M Wilson 
1946-1961 J.B. Hollander 
1961-1966 J.F. Dettmann 
1966-1968 A.R. Emmett 
1968-1970 K.D. Wark 
1970-1973 P.J. Rickey 
1973-1974 A.R. Emmett 
1974-1975 A.C. Cunningham 

1975-1976 A.R. Emmett 
1976-1978 A.C. Cunningham 
1978-1981 D.C. Magarey 
1981-1982 R.A. Blakeney 
1982-1985 D. Harris 
1985-1986 E. Petrie 
1986-1988 P. Sherwood 
1988-1990 P.W. Watkins 
1990-1991 S. Evershead 
1991-1992 I. Fairall 
1992-1993 B. Bennett 
1993-1995 J. Hill 
1995-1999 I. Fairall 
1999-2000 T. Shilton 
2000-2001      B. Richardson 
2001-2002      C. Granger 
2002-2005 S. Flynn 
2005-2006 G. Sundstrom 
2006-2007 J.D. Harpham 
2007-2009      G. Boyle 
2009-2012      G. Sundstrom 
2012-2013 S. Arudpragasam 
2013-2014 D. Bezer 
2014-2019       J. Rixon 

 
  



 

  

 
HONORARY TREASURER: 
 
1908-1915 A.B. Campbell 
1915-1937 H.J. Scope 
1937-1940 E.L. Tyler 
1940-1941 J.B. Slack/G. Humphries 
1941-1942 M. Salier 
1942-1946 F.S. Hendy 
1946-1948 J. Dolman 
1948-1961 J. F. Dettmann 
1961-1968 G.S. Pownall 
1968-1969 S.W. Emmett 
1969-1970 I.D. Chalmers 
1970-1973 J. Gilbert 
1973-1974 B. Flemming/J. Goff 
1974-1975 J. Goff 
1975-1978 B.A. Scott 

1978-1982 N. Dettmann 
1982-1984 B.A. Scott 
1984-1985 P. Bullock 
1985-1986 D. Harris 
1986-1991 K. Best 
1991-1993 M. Tulich 
1993-1994 M. Staples 
1994-1995 J. Hayes 
1995-2000 G. Imhoff 
2000-2004       J. Sharp 
2004-2005 B. Hood 
2005-2006 J.D. Harpham 
2006-2008  C. Granger 
2008-2013  R. Higgins 
2013-  P. Bakker 

 
 
JUVENILE SECRETARY: 
 
1981-1982 A. Kelleher 
1982-1985 G. Schaper/R.A. Blakeney 
1985-1987 R.A. Blakeney 
1987-1988 J.McCormick 
1988-1990 M. Hood 
1991-1992 P. Watkins 
1995-1998 J. Hayes 

1998-2003 R. Weber 
2003-2008  J. Lloyd 
2008-2009  B. Hood 
2009-2011    T. Ryan 
2011-2013    M. Mahoney 
2013- 2016 S. Crayn 
2017 -              D. Barbeler 

 
Lane Cove Cricket Club Premierships 

Municipal & Shires 
 

1st GRADE 
1923-24 
1925-26 
1926-27 
1927-28 
1938-39 
1939-40 
1945-46 
2011-12 

2nd GRADE 
1940-41 
1948-49 
1960-61 
1962-63 
1968-69 
1969-70 
1988-89 
2005-06 

 

3rd GRADE 
1969-70 
1970-71 
1973-74 

4th GRADE 
2011-12 

FRANK GRAY 
2006-07 

TIM CREER CUP 

 
  



 

  

 
4000 RUNS 
 
Name: Inn N.O H.S Agg Avge 
J.F. Dettmann 621 52 195 12,995 22.84 
R.M. Metzler 588 102 157 12,375 25.46 
I. Hiddilston 407 34 152* 9,262 24.83 
J.B. Hollander 380 54 148 9,050 27.76 
K. Best 337 57 116 8,109 28.96 
C.A. Burgess 383 16 113 7,260 19.78 
J.F. Lloyd 377 24 158 7,253 20.55 
D. Naughton 303 35 162* 7,916 29.54 
S.A. Butcher 279 19 169 6,181 23.77 
B. Hood 285 36 225 5,844 23.47 
J.K. French 317 33 99 5,801 20.43 
A.B. Campbell 153 24 177 5,335 41.36 
P.K. Fitzgerald 257 27 145 5,172 22.49 
T. Beattie 226 29 152* 5,079 25.78 
G. Samuelson 264 18 118 4,584 18.63 
B.C. Wall 159 11 188 4,473 30.22 
C. McKay 228 20 114* 4,296 20.65 
D. Treweek 217 30 105 4,229 22.61 
H. Simmons 177 12 142 4,160 25.21 
C. Granger 
A. Southcott 

210 
199 

22 
17 

144 
  124* 

4,111 
4,189 

21.87 
23.02 

 
400 WICKETS 
 
Name: Overs Maidens Runs Wickets Avge 
B.A. Scott 7,024 1,510 22,139 1,214 19.39 
J.F. Dettmann 3,608 338  14,752 1,011 14.59 
J. Dolman 2,539 268 8,665 836 10.36 
G.R. Dettmann 2,303 236 9,395 738 12.73 
A.C. Cunningham 2,012 198 8,647 528 16.38 
H. Kallas 2,350 583 7,641 507 15.07 
T. Cunningham 1,839 272 6,580  471 13.97 
P. Preston 2,293 403 7,469 464 16.10 
B. Richardson 2,494.5 368 8,373 446 18.77 
R.E. Pym Snr 1,580 213 6,098 420 14.52 
T. Holt 2,183 410 7,097 415 17.10 
P. Wilson 1,738 268 7,422 414 17.93 
      

  



 

  

 
50 DISMISSALS BY A WICKETKEEPER 
 
Name: Caught Stumped Total 
A. Emmett 110 49 159 
K. Wark 108 49 157 
P. Ginns 125 18 143 
J.N. Harpham 114 7 121 
G. Moorhead 108 10 118 
K. Best 104 11 115 
S. Flynn 93 21 113 
R. Frazer 76 26 102 
P.J. Fitzgerald 85 16 101 
P.K. Fitzgerald 86 15 101 
A. Kelleher 104 1 105 
A. Maxwell 82 14 96 
S. Willoughby 90 18 108 
P. Brett 99 3 102 
T. Naughton 102 10 112 
A. Arkey 61 18 79 
D.R. Magarey 55 6 61 
J. Gray 50 10 60 
P. Mees 49 10 59 
H.J. Clark 
M. Dodds  

26 
68 

27 
3 

53 
71 

 
 
MOST RUNS IN A SEASON 
 
A.B. Campbell  1,012 runs  1923-24 

  
 
MOST WICKETS IN A SEASON 
 
G.R. Dettmann 106 wickets 1930-31 

 
 
HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SCORE 
 
B Hood 225 runs, 5th Grade 1996-97 
P Cross 202*, 1st Grade 2008-09 

 
 
MOST RUNS IN “A” SHIRE 
 

 Inn NO HS Agg Average 
J B Hollander  371 53 148 8,723 27.43 

 
CENTURY IN EACH INNINGS OF A MATCH 
 
A B Campbell  104 not out and 103 not out 1931-32 

 



 

  

 
HIGHEST TOTAL BY A TEAM 
 
A Shire vs Epping 602 runs 1936-37 

 
RECORD PARTNERSHIP 
 
D C Reid (165) and C L Fox (163) 276 runs 1925-26 

 
MOST DISMISSALS BY A WICKETKEEPER IN A SEASON 
 
A. Kelleher – 40 1997-98 

 
MOST CATCHES BY A FIELDSMAN 
 
C Burgess 17 catches C Shire 1963-64 
J  R Mullins 18 catches C & S  1966-67 
D Naughton 25 catches 1st Grade & U24’s 2004-05 

 
MOST CENTURIES IN A SEASON 
 
I Russell  5 A Shire 1965-66 

 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS CLUB 
 

• Denotes not out / unbroken 
 
1st 273 M Punch 175 A Southcott 124* 2004-05 
2nd 276 D Reid 165 C Fox 163 1925-26 
3rd 186 R Huxley 112 A Harris 94 2001-02 
4th 256* P Sherwood 161* J Pym 107* 1984-85 
5th 263 J Hollander 148 R Metzler 138 1956-57 
6th 199 B Arnall 139 A Maxwell 120 2011-12 
7th 205 T Beattie 152* T Cunningham 72 1967-68 
8th 129 R Metzler 88 E Browne 55 1954-55 
9th 

  
111 
 

A Maxwell 
D Naughton  

167 
110* 

S Willoughby 
J Scarcella 

22 
65* 

2005-06 
2018-19 

10th 112 P Wilson 73 W Sinclair 26* 1966-67 
 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS IN A SHIRE 
 
1st 221 A Murphy 122 K Best 103* 1984-85 
2nd 276 D Reid 165 C Fox 163 1925-26 
3rd 186 R Huxley 112 A Harris 94 2001-02 
4th 256* P Sherwood 161* J Pym 107* 1984-85 
5th 263 J Hollander 148 R Metzler 138 1956-57 
6th 154 C Mandleberg 97 E Galek 80 2017-18 
7th 148* T Beattie 91* P Wilson 59* 1970-71 
8th 129 R Metzler 88 E Browne 55 1954-55 
9th 111 D Naughton 110* J Scarcella 65* 2018-19 
10th 112 P Wilson 73 W Sinclair 26* 1966-67 
       

RECORD PARTNERSHIPS IN B SHIRE 



 

  

1st 273 M Punch 175 A Southcott 124* 2004-05 
2nd 174 C McKay 113 I Davidson 78 2004-05 
3rd 159 P Flemming 101 P Ginns 59* 1991-92 
4th 134 B Fleming 129* I Coupland 45 1972-73 
5th 149 J Colgan 102 J Pogonoski 63 1996-97 
6th 136 G Wark 75 J Dettmann 51 1969-70 
7th 205 T Beattie 152* T Cunningham 72 1967-68 
8th   89 P Ginns 56 M Mitchell 68* 1991-92 
9th 105* M Stone 68* C Robertson 43* 2004-05 
10th   95 J Scarcella 100* N Absalom 14 2011-12 

 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS IN C SHIRE 
1st 193 J Lloyd 158 J Lees 66 2002-03 
2nd 202 J Lloyd 126 A Krishnaswamy 85 2002-03 
3rd 149 P Rickey 92 S Edwards 54 1969-70 
4th 207* G Breusch 116* A Kelleher 100* 1980-81 
5th 178 T Beattie 125* N Dettmann 66 1979-80 
6th 153 C Burgess 113 P Rickey 54 1964-65 
7th 179 A Cornelius 151* P Sinclair 44* 2014-15 
8th   81 P Sherwood 90 R Chard 18* 1973-74 
9th 111 A Maxwell 167 S Willoughby 22 2005-06 
10th   77 N.Trumbull 69* L.Putnam-Gray 33 2009-10 

 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS D SHIRE 
1st 149 P Miller 151 B Knowles 20 1984-85 
2nd 103 J.Lloyd 88 O.Fisher 64 2007-08 
3rd 178 K Clarke 120 G Scott   103* 2006-07 
4th 162 B McVicar 103 R Maclaine    52* 1984-85 
5th 195* B Dibden   102* A Vaughan   101* 2002-03 
6th 199 B Arnall 139 A Maxwell 120 2011-12 
7th 163 J Lloyd 95 P Tompsett 75 2008-09 
8th 125 S Matheson 125* C Hipkin 87 2017-18 
9th   88 S Matheson 125* S Barrett   33 2017-18 
10th   69 R Metzler   77* A Szabo 44 1982-83 

 
RECORD PARTNERSHIPS FRANK GRAY SHIELD 
1st 153* G Sundstrom   78* M Mackenzie   49* 2003-04 
2nd   110 F Boys 100 O Lee-Young 35 2018-19 
3rd 142 M Mackenzie 64 D Naughton 77 2006-07 
4th 125 P Nirmalendran 54 J Rixon 109 2012-13 
5th   67 P Brett 

T Bristow 
93 
85* 

J Bates 
N Kelland 

27 
85 

2006-07 
2017-18 

6th 116* J Bates   73* A Maxwell   38* 2006-07 
7th   52 O Zannino 31 D Gribben 14 2014-15 
8th   78 S Dunn 

J Standing 
90 
45 

P Sinclair 
S Willoughby 

21 
18 

2009-10 
2010-11 

9th   56 S Dunn 90 L Putnam-Gray 25 2009-10 
10th   31 A Cornelius  17* C Hipkin 15 2014-15 

 
  



 

  

 
HAT TRICKS 
These do not appear to have been recorded before 1930 but since then are: 
 
G R Dettmann A Shire 1935-36 
J N Campbell A Shire 1939-40 
J F Dettmann (twice) B Shire 1940-41 
J Norton B Shire 1940-41 
J M Emmingham C & S 1946-47 
W Magson B Shire 1946-47 
J F Dettmann A Shire 1948-49 
J Dolman (twice) A Shire 1948-49 
F Manc C & S 1949-50 
J F Dettmann A Shire 1951-52 
B Ames Gordon B 1953-54 
R E Pym (Snr) B Shire 1955-56 
G Lind Gordon A 1955-56 
A Cunningham B Shire 1956-57 
W Duff A Shire 1956-57 
J Currie B Shire 1956-57 
R Hinwood B Shire 1957-58 
W Duff A Shire 1957-58 
H Kallas B Shire 1960-61 
P Chilton C & S 1961-62 
J F Dettmann B Shire 1962-63 
J R Mullins C & S 1962-63 
H Garvan C & S 1962-63 
T Cunningham A Shire  1963-64 
E B Miles C & S 1964-65 
B Temple-Smith C & S 1964-65 
T Beattie A Shire 1966-67 
J Blaikie A Shire 1966-67 
T Cunningham B Shire 1966-67 
D Jones C Shire 1966-67 
S Edwards Gordon A 1967-68 
P Wilson A Shire 1969-70 
J McIlwraith Gordon A 1970-71 
T Beattie A Shire 1970-71 
K Olliver C & S 1971-72 
H Kallas A Shire 1972-73 
L Carter C Shire 1975-76 
H Kallas A Shire 1976-77 
D Harris B Shire 1980-81 
B McVicar A Shire 1981-82 
B McVicar D Shire 1984-85 
J Wallace D Shire 1991-92 
M Skipper 4th Grade 1995-96 
A Dodds 4th Grade 2002-03 
I Davidson 2nd Grade 2004-05 
O Fisher 4th Grade 2004-05 
C Robertson 3rd Grade                                   2006-07 
I Davidson 2nd Grade 2009-10 



 

  

P Nirmalendran 2nd Grade 2012-13 
 

K Dindayal 2nd Grade 2017-18 
 
The hat tricks by J F Dettmann in 1951-52 against Burwood (6 for 3) and 1962-63 against Sutherland 
(8 for 24) and in 1969-70 by P Wilson against Roseville consisted of four wickets with successive 
balls. 
 
The hat tricks by J F Dettmann and “Peter” Norton in 1940-41 were in the same innings. 
 
 
500 RUNS IN A SEASON 
 
1923-24 A B Campbell 1012 1964-65 J Dettmann 535 
1924-25 A B Campbell 582 1964-65 R Metzler 511 
1925-26 C L Fox 658 1964-65 I Russell 527 
1926-27 D C Reid 658 1965-66 I Russell 816 
1926-27 A Campbell 654 1965-66 J French 517 
1926-27 N V Smith 607 1966-67 I Russell 607 
1927-28 A B Campbell 616 1966-67 R Metzler 626 
1927-28 L Jacob 577 1966-67 J Goff 513 
1928-29 S A Butcher 603 1967-68 J French 593 
1930-31 A B Campbell 721 1967-68 I Russell 509 
1931-32 A B Campbell 665 1968-69 I Russell 633 
1932-33 B C Sheidow 507 1968-69 L Frankish 501 
1932-33 B C Wall 558 1970-71 P Fitzgerald 544 
1933-34 H Simmons 757 1977-78 K Best 590 
1934-35 B C Wall 612 1980-81 F Paterson 524 
1935-36 H R Alder 503 1980-81 G Breusch 610 
1936-37 B C Wall 662 1984-85 B McVicar 751 
1937-38 G Andrews 607 1984-85 J Pym 621 
1940-41 J F Dettmann 698 1984-85 K Best 578 
1942-43 M Salier 659 1986-87 D McLean 662 
1942-43 B C Wall 503 1988-89 D Stepto 542 
1947-48 J B Hollander 513 1990-91 R McEvilly 512 
1949-50 J F Dettmann 648 1992-93 G Easy 565 
1951-52 I Hiddilston 539 1993-94 A Kelleher 533 
1952-53 R M Metzler 647 1993-94 D Johnson 526 
1952-53 J B Hollander 517 1993-94 H Macdonald 569 
1953-54 R M Metzler 693 1997-98 C Wiseman 651 
1955-56 J B Hollander 513 1997-98 C Granger 505 
1955-56 G Haddon 579 2001-02 D Naughton 527 
1956-57 I Hiddilston 517 2002-03 J Lloyd 603 
1956-57 J B Hollander 742 2004-05 D Naughton 535 
1957-58 I Hiddilston 649 2005-06 C Granger 542 
1957-58 J Dettmann 507 2005-06 D Naughton 535 
1957-58 C Burgess 617 2005-06 A Maxwell 512 
1958-59 I Hiddilston 631 2006-07 C Granger 583 
1960-61 R Metzler 571 2007-08 P Cross 633 
1961-62 R Metzler 508 2008-09 P Cross 637 
1962-63 I Hiddilston 584 2008-09 B Hood 637 



 

  

1962-63 J Potter 698 2008-09 A Southcott 517 
1962-63 I Hiddilston 582 2010-11 R Gallichan 680 
1964-65 B Gunn 654 2012-13 D. Naughton 524 
   2017-18 T. Bristow 517 

 
300 RUNS IN A FRANK GRAY SEASON 
 
2004-05 D Naughton 376  
2005-06 P Brett 311  
2006-07 D Naughton 535 Frank Gray Shires Record 

 
 
50 WICKETS IN A SEASON 
 
1923-24 G R Dettmann 80 1949-50 J Dettmann 57 
1923-24 L Bloomfield 65 1949-50 J Dolman 75 
1923-24 H Scope 55 1950-51 J Dolman 79 
1924-25 N H Fox 54 1951-52 J Dolman 70 
1924-25 H W Fraser 63 1951-52 J Dettmann 55 
1924-25 G R Dettmann 56 1952-53 J Dolman 50 
1927-28 G R Dettmann 63 1953-54 R Hinwood 50 
1927-28 L Jacob 70 1956-57 R Hinwood 50 
1928-29 G R Dettmann 66 1957-58 R Hinwood 54 
1930-31 G R Dettmann 106 1957-58 W Duff 50 
1930-31 W Grant 50 1958-59 A Cunningham 50 
1930-31 A Murray 56 1961-62 W Duff 50 
1931-32 C Murray 64 1966-67 R Pym (Jnr) 50 
1932-33 G R Dettmann 65 1966-67 P Wilson 54 
1932-33 C Murray 62 1967-68 P Wilson 62 
1933-34 A McClintock 51 1969-70 P Wilson 59 
1934-35 R Potts 51 1969-70 T Cunningham 69 
1935-36 G R Dettmann 91 1975-76 M Fitzgerald 60 
1935-36 R Butcher 56 1975-76 A Harris 55 
1938-39 J Campbell 95 1976-77 A Cartwright 51 
1938-39 J Dolman 53 1976-77 W Massey 50 
1939-40 J Campbell 95 1977-78 B Scott 50 
1940-41 J F Dettmann 69 1984-85 B McVicar 70 
1940-41 J H Norton 51 1997-98 C Wiseman 50 
1940-41 F S Hendy 68 1999-2000 T Holt 52 
1945-46 J Dolman 70 2002-03 P Cruden 50 
1945-46 J Dolman 63 2002-03 S Lees 53 
1948-49 J Dettmann 62 2012-13 C Bezer 54 
   2017-18 L. O’Hare 53 

 
20 WICKETS IN A FRANK GRAY SEASON 
 
2004-05 B Richardson 22  
2004-05 T Holt 20  
2006-07 M Mackenzie 29 Frank Gray Shires Record 

 
  



 

  

 
BEST BOWLING 
There have been 94 recorded instances of bowlers taking seven wickets in an innings.  Of these, the 
best were Lionel Bloomfield (7-7 in 1923-24), Bruce Ames (7-9 in 1953-54) and Dick Pym (7-19 
twice in one game in 1965-66) and Ian Fairall (7-27 in 1990-91 & 7-9 in 1994-95). 
 
10 WICKETS IN AN INNINGS 
H J Scope 10 for 21 C & S 1917-18 

 
9 WICKETS IN AN INNINGS 
W Duff 9 for 31 B Shire 1961-62 
W Bryan 9 for 17  B Shire 1957-58 
I Nash 9 for 27 D Shire 1995-96 
T Holt 9 for 54 1st Grade 2002-03 

 
8 WICKETS IN AN INNINGS 
A Jenkins 8 for 16 A Shire 2017-18 
B C Wall 8 for 65 A Shire 1933-34 
G Andrews 8 for 38 B Shire 1933-34 
G R Dettmann 8 for 19 A Shire 1935-36 
G Starke 8 for 50 A Shire 1935-36 
G R Dettmann 8 for 63 A Shire 1935-36 
G R Dettmann 8 for 37 A Shire 1935-36 
R E Pym 8 for 17 Gordon A 1954-55 
G Lind 8 for 30 Gordon A 1955-56 
J Mottee 8 for 68 B Shire 1955-56 
P Fellows 8 for 25 A Shire 1960-61 
J F Dettmann 8 for 24 B Shire 1962-63 
G Dawson 8 for 65 C Shire 1966-67 
P Wilson 8 for 79 A Shire 1966-67 
P Wilson 8 for 38 A Shire 1969-70 
P Wilson 8 for 80 A Shire 1969-70 
W Edwards 8 for 32 Gordon A 1969-70 
K Chard 8 for 42 C Shire 1972-73 
T Dagg 8 for 66 C Shire 1972-73 
T Cunningham 8 for 53 C Shire 1973-74 
D Eade 8 for 38 C & S 1974-75 
K Birdsall 8 for 17 C Shire 1975-76 
J Jeffrey 8 for 63 C Shire 1975-76 
J H Dettmann 8 for 45 C Shire 1975-76 
D Eade 8 for 22 C & S 1975-76 
D Eade 8 for 40 C & S 1975-76 
R Massey 8 for 67 C Shire 1976-77 
B Scott 8 for 40 C Shire 1977-78 
H Kallas 8 for 58 A Shire 1978-79 
K Chard 8 for 48 C Shire 1979-80 
R Bruun 8 for 59 C Shire 1985-86 
B Bennett 8 for 48 B Shire 1990-91 
A Hejtmanek 8 for 36 D Shire 1991-92 
G Sanderson 8 for 52 Gordon C Grade 1996-97 
S Lees 8 for 43 D Shire 2002-03 
MMackenzie 8 for 32 U24s 2006-07 



 

  

J Scarcella 8 for 51 A Shire 2014-15 
 
13 OR MORE WICKETS IN A MATCH 
 
R E Pym (Snr) 14 for 38 C Shire 1965-66 
H J Scope 14 for 41 A Shire  1923-24 
B Scott 14 for 100 C Shire 1977-78 
G. Sanderson 14 for ? 5th Grade GDJCA 1996-97 
K Chard 13 for 13 C Shire  1972-73 
A Chapman 13 for 74 Gordon Juniors 1965-66 
A Hejtmanek 13 for 93 D Shire 1991-92 
G Sanderson 14 for 98 Gordon C Grade 1996-97 
T Holt 13 for 89 A Shire 2002-03 

 
BATSMEN WHO HAVE BATTED THROUGH INNINGS 
 
1923-24 C.L. Fox  (B) 79* v Lane Cove A 
1931-32 A.B. Campbell (A) 104* v Western Suburbs 
1931-32 H. Simmons (B) 104* v Balmain 
1933-34 A.B. Campbell (A) 115* v Burwood 
1936-37 H. Simmons (A) 112* v Ryde 
1995-96 A. Ashe (D) 48* v Auburn 
2009-10 
2013-14                

A. Southcott 
R. McElduff 

2nd  
3rd  

66* 
28* 

v Macquarie Uni 
v Georges River 

 
MORE THAN 50 CATCHES (EXCLUDING WICKET KEEPING) 
Before 1948-49 these were not recorded and since then, in some years, the catching statistics have 
been omitted from team records. The following figures show the number of catches actually credited 
to each player, the figures in the middle column being the number of seasons in which the players 
played but for which no catching record is available. 
 
JF Dettmann 13 149 G Pownall 2 63 
D Naughton 0 190 J Hill 1 62 
RM Metzler 6 141 R McIlwraith 1 62 
BA Scott ? 130 H Kallas 2 61 
I Hiddilston 11 125 C McKay 0 63 
JF Lloyd 0 121 JB Hollander 11 60 
JR Mullins 7 114 B Richardson 0 65 
CA Burgess 6 105 A Southcott 0 63 
L Arambewela 0 102 I Davidson 0 61 
T Cunningham 1 94 H Garvan 7 58 
P Preston 2 91 K Chard 0 58 
A Cunningham 3 89 S Myers 0 57 
JH Dettman 0 88 G Schaper 0 58 
T Holt 0 92 D Treweek 0 58 
K Best 0 86 P Wilson 2 57 
JK French 4  85 G Cornelius 0 56 
B Hood ? 85 D Harris 0 56 
G Sundstrom 0 77 G Humphries 0 56 
T Beattie 1 75 R Rickey 0 56 
A Cartwright 0 71 G Samuelson 5 54 
T Pearce 2 69 J Goff 1 53 



 

  

I Russell 1 66 C Granger 0 51 
P Rickey 0 64 G Boyle 

J Camarsh 
 

0 
0 
 

51 
63 
 

BATSMEN WHO HAVE SCORED 150 IN AN INNINGS 
 
B Hood 5th 225 
P Cross 1st Grade 202* 
B McVicar D 197 
J F Dettmann B 195 
K Levy GA 189 
B C Wall A 188 
A B Campbell A 177 
D Johnson C 176 
M Punch 2nd Grade 175 
S A Butcher A 169 
I Russell A 167 
A Maxwell 3rd Grade 167 
H MacDonald GC 166 
D C Reid B 165 
H Van Heerdon 2nd Grade 164* 
C L Fox B 163 
D Naughton 1st Grade 162* 
P Sherwood A 161* 
S Williams C 161* 
J Lloyd C 158 
R M Metzler B 157 
B C Wall A 155 
D C Redi A 154 
J F Dettmann B 153* 
I Hiddilston A 152* 
I Russell A 152* 
T Beattie A 152* 
A Cornelius 3rd Grade 151* 
R M Metzler A 151 
P Miller D 151 
B Hood 4th Grade 150* 

 
TEAM SCORES OVER 400 
 
1936-37 A v Epping 602 (180 minutes) 
1927-28 A v St George 474  
1931-32 B v Ryde 430  
1936-37 B v N Districts 410 (9 wickets) 
2002-03 C v S Districts 402 (4 wickets) 
2004-05 2nd v Lindfield 406 (4 wickets) 

 
FASTEST CENTURIES 
 
1948-49 M Wilson CS 100 v Barker Old Boys 28 minutes 
1952-53 C A Burgess WK 106 v Wanderers 36 minutes 
2006-07 D Naughton 1st        100* v Georges River 34 balls 



 

  

 
 
 
BATSMEN WHO HAVE SCORED 1,000 RUNS IN A SEASON 
 
1920-21 A B Campbell CS 1031 
1923-24 A B Campbell A 1012 

 
25 OR MORE DISMISSALS IN A SEASON BY A WICKET-KEEPER 
 
Date Name Grade Catches Stumpings Dismissals 
2017-18 M Dodds 1st / U24 47 3 50 
2006-07 T Naughton 1st / U24 38 6 44 
1997-98 A Kelleher 1st 40 0 40 
1995-96 P Fleming 1st/2nd 30 2 32 
2002-03 P Brett 1st/ 2nd/ U24 29 1 30 
1996-97 A Kelleher 1st 29 0 29 
2001-02 S Flynn 1st/2nd/U24  26 3 29 
2005-06 T Naughton 2nd/3rd/4th/U24 28 1 29 
1971-72 P K Fitzgerald A 21 7 28 
2004-05 
2018-19 

P Brett 
L Hume 

1st/U24 
2nd 

27 
20 

1 
8 

28 
28 

1951-52 R McGrath A 17 10 27 
1991-92 S Corcoran D 21 5 26 
1972-73 P K Fitzgerald A 23 3 26 
1996-97 G Moorhead 4th 25 1 26 
1995-96 G Moorhead 4th 25 1 26 
2003-04 P Brett 1st/ U24 25 1 26 
2011-12 JN Harpham 1st 25 1 26 
1931-32 G Shaw A 12 13 25 
1983-84 K Best A 20 5 25 
1993-94 P Rayner GC 21 4 25 
2008-09 S Willoughby 2nd / 3rd 20 5 25 
2012-13 
 

P Mees 2nd 24 1 25 

 
INDIVIDUAL CENTURIES 
Since the beginning of the Shires competition in the 1923-24 season 262 have been recorded. In the 
following list, the legend is: 
 

A (1st) Shire  (A) (1st)  Gordon District A Grade  (GA) 
B (2nd) Shire   (B) (2nd)  Gordon District B Grade  (GB) 
C (3rd) Shire  I (3rd)  Gordon District B Reserve Grade (GBR) 
D (4th) Shire   (D) (4th)  Gordon District C Grade  (GC) 
TCC (5th) Shire – Tim Creer Cup  Willoughby-Kuringai Association (WK) 
      Northern Suburbs Cricket Assoc. (N) 
      City & Suburban   (CS) 
      Not Out    * 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
 
 
 

1923-24    
A B Campbell A 177 v Gordon 
A B Campbell A 151  
C L Fox A 140  
A B Campbell A 100 v Gordon 
C L Turner B 124 v Petersham 
    
1924-25    
A B Campbell A 123*  
D C Reid A 107  
A Collins B 108  
    
1925-26    
H J Scope A 110  
D Chidgey A 108*  
D C Reid B 165  
C L Fox B 163  
R Brodie B 141  
    
1926-27    
D C Reid A 154  
A B Campbell B 113  
H J Scope B 113  
    
1927-28    
H Buckley A 133*  
A B Campbell A 131  
R Brodie A 102*  
L Jacob B 115  
N Smith B 108  
    
1929-30    
C L Turner A 115  
L J Tayler B  117*  
    

 
    
    
1930-31    
B C Sheidow A  109* v Petersham 
A B Campbell A  112* v Waverley 
B C Sheidow A 127 v Gordon 
A B Campbell A 106  
H F Simmons B 102  
    
1931-32    
A B Campbell A 104* v Western Suburbs 
A B Campbell A 103* v Western Suburbs 
H F Simmons B 104* v Balmain 



 

  

F Tomlin B 103* v Ryde 
L J Tayler A 117 v Glebe 
H R Alder A 104 v North Districts 
F Tomlin B 119 v Ryde 
    
1932-33    
L J Tayler A 104 v North Districts 
S A Butcher A 103 v St George 
H F Simmons B 107 v Ryde 
    
1933-34    
B C Wall A 155 v Ryde 
B C Wall A 132 v St George 
A B Campbell A 115* v Burwood 
H F Simmons B 142 v Balmain 
C F Rowley B 120 v Balmain 
H F Simmons B 119 v North Districts 
H F Simmons B 116 v St George 
H F Simmons B 102 v Mosman 
    
1934-35    
B C Wall A 118 v St George 
B C Wall A   101*  
N Henniker B 103  
    
1935-36    
H R Alder A 137 v Randwick 
    
1936-37    
B C Wall A 188 v Epping 
S A Butcher A 169  
F A Limbert A 142 v Epping 
H F Simmons A   112* v Ryde 
B C Wall A 108 v Epping 
A F M Pratt A 104 v Epping 
E Burge B   127*  
C F Rowley B   114*  
G Stalgis B 100  
    
1937-38    
V Taylor B 106 v Lindfield 
G Andrews B 106 v Lindfield 
V Taylor B 105 v Lindfield 
G Andrews B 104  
N Fisher B 100  
    
1938-39    
B C Wall A 101  
    
1939-40    
J B Hollander A 136  



 

  

E Burge A 124  
E Burge A 103  
H F Simmons A 100  
    
1940-41    
J F Dettmann B 195 v Ryde 
J F Dettmann B 126 v Epping 
J F Dettmann B 105 v Manly 
    
1941-42    
I Hiddilston A 100* v Epping 
    
1943-44    
M Saliera A 100*  
S A Butcher A 100*  
    
1946-47    
F Loughlan B 107* v Lindfield 
A Drewitt-Smith B 100* v University 
J Fox CS 108* v Old Aloysians 
    
1948-49    
H R Thorton B   125* v Epping 
H R Thorton B 107 v Burwood 
S A Butcher CS 113  
M Wilson CS 100 v Barker Old Boys 

 
1949-50    
S M Dunn A 145 v Roseville 
J F Dettmann A 104 v Roseville 
A Fellows B   139* v Lindfield 
A Leggatt B 114 v Lindfield 
    
1950-51    
J B Hollander A 118 v Roseville 
    
    
    
1951-52    
J B Hollander A 138  
R M Metzler WK 112 v Roseville 
R M Metzler WK 106 v Artarmon Vets 
    
1952-53    
C A Burgess WK 106 v Wanderers 
L Clark WK 106 v Chatswood 
    
1953-54    
M Jones B 128 v Ryde 
R M Metzler GA 114 v Artarmon Vets 
R M Metzler GA 108 v Roseville 



 

  

R M Metzler GA 107 v Wanderers 
    
1954-55    
G Haddon GA 107 v Methodists 
B Ames N 101 v Clifton 
    
1955-56    
R M Metzler A 114 v Sutherland 
J B Hollander A 109 v Ryde 
J B Hollander A 101 v Lindfield 
F Dew B   134* v Ryde 
G Haddon GA   101*  
    
1956-57    
I Hiddilston A 152* v Roseville 
J B Hollander A 148 v Roseville 
R M Metzler A 138 v Roseville 
J F Dettmann A 102 v Bexley 
J B Hollander A   100* v Roseville 
A Willis B 101 v Auburn 
R M Metzler A 151 v Roseville 

 
1957-58     
I Hiddilston A 114 v Burwood 
I Hiddilston A   111* v Canterbury 
C A Burgess B 106 v Canterbury 
    
1958-59    
P K Fitzgerald A 145 v Roseville 
I Hiddilston A 125 v Burwood 
J F Dettmann A   103* v Uni Technology 
    
1959-60    
J F Dettmann B   153* v Pennant Hills 
R M Metzler B 125 v Bexley 
G S Pownall B 118 v Sutherland 
    
1960-61    
G Samuelson A 126 v Canterbury 
P K Fitzgerald A 120 v Sutherland 
R A Potts B   114* v Sutherland 
R M Metzler B 108 v Epping 
R M Metzler B   100* v Ryde 
I Hiddilston A 102 v Ryde 
M Samuelson B 112 v Canterbury 
R A Potts B 109 v Ryde 
    
1962-63    
J G Potter A 112 v Burwood 
J G Potter A 106 v Epping 
J A Ward A   103* v Pennant Hills 



 

  

B Gunn A 101 v Auburn 
R A Jones B 123 v Bexley 
R M Metzler B 105 v Ryde 
R A Jones B 100* v Auburn 
    
1963-64    
I Hiddilston A 116 v Ryde 
I Hiddilston A 108 v Canterbury 
M Samuelson B 104 v Canterbury 
J F Dettmann B   102* v Roseville 
B Andrews CS   111* v Willoughby 
    
1964-65    
I Hiddilston A 123 v Roseville 
B Gunn A 117 v Sutherland 
P Wilson A 113 v Ryde 
B Gunn A 112 v Bexley 
B Gunn A  102* v Epping 
B Gunn A 101 v Lindfield 
J F Dettmann B 143 v Bexley 
D Field B 132 v Lindfield 
C A Burgess C 113 v Epping 

 
1965-66    
R Radford A 118 v Auburn 
I Russell A 137 v Ryde 
I Russell A   125* v Pennant Hills 
I Russell A 108 v Bexley 
I Russell A 106 v Sutherland 
I Russell A 102 v Lindfield 
K Levy GA 189 v Mosman 
I Chalmers GA 103 v Roseville 
J K French CS   100* v Manly Vets 
    
    
    
1966-67    
I Russell A 167 v Roseville 
R M Metzler B 157 v Epping 
R Radford B 125 v Auburn 
S Follington CS 137 v Manly Vets 
A Cutler CS 110 v Manly Vets 
G Wark CS 103 v Uni of NSW 
    
1967-68    
T Beattie A   152* v Sutherland 
C A Burgess B 103 v Ryde 
P Rickey C 100 v Manly 
J Goff GA 141 v Artarmon Vets 
R Radford CS 108 v Mosman 
    



 

  

1968-69    
I Russell A 119 v Pennant Hills 
I Russell A 110 v Roseville 
L Frankish B 103 v Uni of NSW 
    
1969-70 
P McCann A 104 v Auburn 
R Radford B 124 v Burwood 
G Wark B 100 v Roseville 
P McCann C   113* v Epping 
    
1970-71    
P McCann A 102 V Lindfield 
T Pearce A 106 v Burwood 
T Beattie A 103 v Epping 
R McIlwraith A   101* v Ryde 
    
1972-73    
B Fleming B 129* v Epping 
R Rickey B 113* v Epping 
P K Fitzgerald CS 104 v Waverley 
 
1973-74    
R Rickey A 131 v Canterbury 
T Beattie A 102 v Pennant Hills 
    
1977-78    
C Logan A 111 v Wentworthville 
K Best A 101 v Bexley 
T Pearce B 106 v Lindfield 
A Swan C 124 v South Districts 
G Ball C   101* v Lindfield 
    
1978-79    
P J Fitzgerald 
 

A 119* v Macquarie Uni 

1979-80    
A O’Neill B 103* v Roseville 
T Beattie C 125* v Canterbury 
    
1980-81    
F Paterson A   125* v Bexley 
F Paterson A 109 v Macquarie Uni 
F Paterson A   105* v Lindfield 
R Howard B 108 v Pennant Hills 
M Scully C   104* v Warringah 
G Breusch C   116* v Canterbury 
A Kelleher C   100* v Canterbury 
    
1981-82   
R Maclaine A 101 v Macquarie Uni 



 

  

A O’Neill A  100* v Canterbury 
M Mitchell B 109 v Epping 
J Matthews A 114 v Wentworthville 
J Pym A 104 v Bexley 
    
1983-84    
S Ross B 100* v Macquarie Uni 
D Treweek C 104 v Lindfield 
    
1984-85    
P Sherwood A   161* v Pennant Hills 
A Murphy A 122 v Canterbury 
A Murphy A   114* v Lindfield 
J Pym A   107* v Pennant Hills 
K Best A   103* v Canterbury 
J Pym A   102* v Epping 
M Scully C 127 v Epping 
B McVicar D 197 v Auburn 
P Miller D 151 v Baulkham Hills 
B McVicar D 113 v Epping 
B McVicar D 103 v Epping 
    
1985-86    
R McEvilly B 118 v Macquarie Uni 
    
1986-87    
D McLean A 135 v Roseville 
K Best A 116 v Strathfield 
S Ross B   128* v Canterbury 
S Williams C   161* v Lindfield 
D McLean D   131* v Epping 
    
1987-88    
J McCormick D 109 v Epping 
    
1988-89    
J Howarth B   107* v Bexley 
D Stepto B   103* v Pennant Hills 
D Stepto B 103 v Lindfield 
D Stepto B  102 v Bexley 
    
1989-90 
J Marinovich C 100 v Strathfield 
    
1990-91    
L Della A 130 v Canterbury 
D McLean A 127 v Epping 
A McLean B   104* v Lindfield 
B Bennett B 102 v Strathfield 
K Buckley C   106* v Epping 
D Treweek C   100* v Pennant Hills 



 

  

P K Fitzgerald D   100* v Strathfield 
    
1991-92    
S Roberts A 100 v Canterbury 
P Lloyd B   131* v Roseville 
P Dodd B 111 v Baulkham Hills 
P Flemming B 101 v Strathfield 
K Phillips D 123 v Pennant Hills 
    
1992-93    
P Campbell A 131 v Pennant Hills 
K Best A   102* v Lindfield 
P Campbell A 101 v Baulkham Hills 
M Tulich C 115 v Pennant Hills 

 
1993-94    
A Kelleher A 143 v Holroyd 
D McLean A 101 v Auburn 
D Johnson C 176  
A Roberts C   103*  
D Johnson C 101  
D Treweek D 105  
A Love D 103  
G Easy D 101  
R Gobee D 100  
H McDonald GC 166 v Lindfield 
H McDonald GC 101 v Hackers 
 
1994-95 

   

J Lloyd B 129 v Auburn 
P Flemming B 100 v Baulkham Hills 
G Easy C 129 v Auburn 
P Rayner D 119 v Holroyd 
 
 

   

1995-96 
A Kelleher 1st 115 v  Auburn 
D Stepto 1st 100 v  Epping 
M Wood 3rd   119* v  Bexley 
J Christodoulakis 4th 131 v  Baulkham Hills 
G Brown 4th 140 v  Macquarie Uni 
A Ashe 4th 111 v  Auburn 
A Wood 4th 114 v  Macquarie uni 
P Mogan GC   105* v  Roseville 
    
1996-97    
M Cook 2nd 125 v Epping 
J Colgan 2nd 102 v Macquarie Uni 
A Wood 2nd 100* v Baulkham Hills 
J Pogonoski 3rd 135* v Bexley 
J Twomey 3rd 120* v Auburn 



 

  

C Brown 4th 137 v Baulkham Hills 
T Hall 4th 116* V SES 
B Hood GC 225 V Lindfield 
    
1997-98    
C Granger 3rd 117 Pennant Hills 
S Rogers GC 116 West Pymble Colts 
S Rogers GC 100 Forest Old Boys 
H McDonald GC 101 Forest Old Boys 

 
1998-99    
R McEvilly 1st 106* Roseville 
P Campbell 2nd 104 Lindfield 
G Paul 4th 145 Macquarie Uni 
S Myers U24s 117* Roseville 
    
2000-01    
J Lloyd 1st 116 Pennant Hills 
H McDonald 4th 114 Holroyd 
    
2001-02    
R Huxley 1st 112 Warringah 
A Southcott 2nd 113 Macquarie Uni 
S Stewart 4th 120 Strathfield 
    
2002-03    
H Van Heerdon 2nd 164* Epping 
T Hinton 2nd 104 Lindfield 
J Lloyd 3rd 158 Southern Districts 
J Lloyd 3rd 129 Epping 
B Dibden 4th 102* Auburn 
A Vaughn 4th 101* Auburn 
L Hardy GBR 111* Kirribilli 
B Habgood 
 

GBR 101 Old Ignatians 

2003-04    
G Sundstrom 2nd 118 Roseville 
R McEvilly 2nd 106 Macquarie Uni 
B Hood 2nd 102 Pennant Hills 
J Hinton 2nd 100* Burwood 
    
2004-05    
D Naughton 1st 131 Southern Districts 
A Harris 1st 114* Lindfield 
D Naughton 1st 110 Georges River 
M Punch 2nd 175 Lindfield 
A Southcott 2nd 124* Lindfield 
C McKay 2nd 113 Georges River 
A Southcott 3rd 102* Southern Districts 
I Davidson GB 134* North Shore CC 
S Lees GB 107 West Pymble 



 

  

    
2005-06    
D Naughton 1st 144 Burwood 
A Maxwell 3rd 167 South Sydney 
K Clarke 4th 117 Roseville 
B Hood 4th 102* Georges River 
    
2006-07    
D Naughton 1st 100* Georges River 
C McKay 2nd 114* Georges River 
C Granger 3rd 144 South Sydney 
K Clarke 4th 120 Southern Districts 
G Scott 4th 103* Southern Districts 
D Webb TCC 139* Lindfield 
    
2007-08    
P Cross 1st 107 Macquarie Uni 
I Skinner 2nd  104 Auburn 
C McKay 2nd  100* South Sydney 
M Warren 3rd 124 Georges River 
A Harley 4th 138 Epping 
S Iyer 4th 102* Pennant Hills 
N Papastamatis TCC 103 Pennant Hills 
    
2008-09    
P Cross 1st 202* Macquarie Uni 
I Phelps 3rd 118 Warringah 
L O’Connor 3rd 102* Warringah 
B Hood 4th 150* Roseville 
O Fisher 4th 116 Lindfield 
S Iyer TCC 101* Roseville 
I Phelps TCC 101 Burwood 
 
 

   

2009-10    
B Arnall 1st 126* Southern Districts 
G Smith 1st 114 South Sydney 
J Camarsh 1st 113 South Sydney 
S Mantarro 4th 118 Burwood 
B Dempsey 4th 103* Lindfield 
    
2010-11    
R Gallichan 1st 147 Epping 
R Gallichan 1st 119 Pennant Hills 
R Gallichan 1st 102* Roseville 
P Gallichan 1st 101* South Sydney 
D Naughton 1st 100 Macquarie Uni 
D Naughton 2nd 100 Southern Districts 
    
 
 

   



 

  

 
2011-12 
R Gallichan 1st 119 Burwood 
R Gallichan 1st 110* NW Sydney 
J Scarcella 2nd 100* Warringah 
G Sundstrom 3rd 144 Macquarie Uni 
B Arnall 4th 139 Epping 
A Maxwell 4th 120 Epping 
P Ritchie 4th 100* Pennant Hills 
L Mead TCC 101 Macquarie Uni 
    
2012-13    
D Naughton 1st 162* Strathfield 
P Gallichan 1st 106* Burwood 
P Gallichan 1st 100* Roseville 
J Rixon U24s 109 Auburn 

 
2013-14    
D Naughton 1st 100* Burwood 
C Eve 1st 100* Macquarie Uni 
M Fanning TCC 110 Lindfield 
D Webb TCC 105 NWS 
M Rogers TCC 104* Lindfield 

 
2014-15    
D Naughton 1st 116* Lindfield 
M Roberts 2nd 123 Roseville 
A Cornelius 3rd 151* NW Sydney 
N Kelland 3rd 102 Mt Pritchard-Sthn Dist 
 
2015-16 

   

C King 2nd 108* Pennant Hills 
C King 2nd 26* Auburn 
 
2016-17 

   

D Naughton 1st 105* Warringah 
C King 2nd 101* Warringah 

 
2017-18    
Z Malik 1st 107* NW Sydney 
Z Malik U24s 100 Roseville 
Z Malik U24s 107 Pennant Hills 
T Bristow 2nd  104 Roseville 
S Matheson 
 
2018-19 
D Naughton  
F Boys  
F Boys 
 
 

4th  
 
 

1st  

1st  
24s 

 

119 
 
 

110 
102 
100 

(Same weekend) 

Balmain South Sydney 
 
 
Roseville 
Epping 
Epping 
 
 



 

  

 
TROPHIES 

 
CLUBMAN AWARD 
 

1966-67 J Goff  1990-91 M Mitchell & J Lloyd 
1967-68 J Goff & P Wilson  1991-92 I Fairall 
1968-69 No award  1992-93 B Scott 
1969-70 T Cunningham  1993-94 J Hill 
1970-71 R Rickey  1994-95 J Hayes & J Lloyd 
1971-72 T Beattie  1995-96 J Lloyd 
1972-73 H Kallas & M Thomas  1996-97 I Green 
1973-74 R Rickey  1997-98 J Hayes 
1974-75 H Kallas  1998-99 J Lloyd & R Weber 
1975-76 A Harris  1999-00 N/A 
1976-77 A Harris  2000-01 B Hood 
1977-78 B Scott  2001-02 S Flynn & C Robertson 
1978-79 R Blakeney  2002-03 M Mackenzie 
1979-80 A Kelleher  2003-04 C Whitney 
1980-81 A Harris & G Schaper  2004-05 S Myers 
1981-82 M Mitchell  2005-06 G Sundstrom 
1982-83 M Metzler  2006-07 G Boyle 
1983-84 M Hallman & M Scully  2007-08 G Boyle 
1984-85 P Bullock & M Scully  2008-09 T Ryan 
1985-86 J Hill  2009-10 T Ryan 
1986-87 D Treweek & J McCormick  2010-11 G Sundstrom 
1987-88 K Best  2011-12 B Dempsey 
1988-89 M Mitchell & P Watkins  2012-13 S Crayn 
1989-90 K Best & P Watkins  2013-14 ? 
   2014-15 ? 
   2015-16 Jarrod Rixon 
   2016-17 Ben Preece 
   2017-18 

2018-19 
Alec Cornelius 
Alec Cornelius  

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 
THE CLUB CRICKETER AWARD 
 
1978-79 K Best 
1979-80 G O’Shea 
1980-81 F Paterson 
1981-82 K Best 
1982-83 J Pym 
1983-84 K Best 
1984-85 J Pym 
1985-86 B Scott, L Arambewela 
1986-87 D McLean 
1987-88 L Arambewela 
1988-89 M Mitchell, D Stepto 
1989-90 K Best 
1990-91 R McEvilly 
1991-92 S Roberts 
1992-93 A McLean, D McLean 
1993-94 A Kelleher 
1994-95 I Green 
1995-96 A Kelleher 
1996-97 S Sloane 
1997-98 C Wiseman 
1998-99 P Campbell 
1999-2000 S Myers 
2000-01 D Grant 
2001-02 D Naughton 
2002-03 J Lloyd, P. Cruden, S. Lees 
2003-04 S Dunn 
2004-05 D Naughton 
2005-06 J Bates 
2006-07 S Hunter 
2007-08 P Cross 
2008-09 P Cross, J Gayleard 
2009-10 G Smith 
2010-11 N Absalom, P Gallichan 
2011-12 T Holt 
2012-13 J Camarsh 
2013-14 ? 
2014-15 ? 
2015-16 ? 
2016-17 Damian Naughton 
2017-18 
2018-19 

Liam O’Hare 
Joe Scarcella  

 
 
 



 

  

THE HIDDILSTON MEMORIAL SHIELD 
1985-86 B Bennett 2002-03 S Dunn 
1986-87 A McCormick 2003-04 M Scott 
1987-88 L Taylor 2004-05 S Willoughby 
1988-89 S Heher 2005-06 L Higgins 
1989-90 D Cook 2006-07 M Dean 
1990-91 B Hood 2007-08 F McKenna 
1991-92 B Hood 2008-09 J Musgrave 
1992-97 Not awarded 2009-10 C Spratt 
1997-98 C. McKay 2010-11 L Borg 
1998-99 M. Eggert 2011-12 A Sidhu 
1999-2000 T.McDonald 2012-13 M Crayn 
2000-01 M Mackenzie 2013-14 ? 
2001-02 T McDonald 2014-15 

2015-16 
2016-17 
2017-18 
2018-19 

? 
? 
? 
? 
L Maxwell  

 
PLAYERS’ PLAYER AWARD 
2001-02 S Myers 
2003-03 P Cruden 
2003-04 S Dunn 
2004-05 D Naughton 
2005-06 T Holt 
2006-07 B Scott 
2007-08 P Cross 
2008-09 B Scott, J Gayleard 
2009-10 A Dodds 
2010-11 N Absalom 
2011-12 T Holt 
2012-19 Not awarded 
 
SHIRES AWARDS 
2004-05 JF Dettmann Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 
2004-05 D Naughton 1st Grade Captain of the Season 
2004-05 D Naughton Frank Gray Player of the Season 
2005-06 JB Hollander Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 
2005-06 T Holt 1st Grade Player of the Season (joint) 
2006-07 B Scott Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 
2006-07 D Naughton Frank Gray Player of the Season 
2006-07 D Naughton Player of the Frank Gray Final 
2009-10 RM Metzler Legend of Shires Cricket Inductee 
2009-10 G Sundstrom 3rd Grade Captain of the Season  
2010-11 B Dempsey 4th Grade Captain of the Season 
2011-12 R Gallichan Player of the 1st Grade Final 



 

  

2011-12 B Dempsey 4th Grade Captain of the Season 
 
CUMULATIVE STATISTICS AS AT 2018/19 
 
 

 NAME INN NO RUNS WKT
S 

RUNS W
K 

 S
T 

 CT 

N Absalom 53 26 207 151 2030     24 
H Ahmed 4 0 22 1 44     2 
A Alla 4 1 47 1 12     0 
A Allan 7 4 132 7 224     1 
S Allen 11 2 51 4 251      
R Aman 31 1 556 25 504     16 
D Amin 9 1 58 4 178     0 
J Anders 10 4 70 6 263     5 
P Anderson 9 2 38 16 365     1 
J Anstey 10 0 216 0 0     6 
M Arkinstall 17 1 219 0 0     8 
JD Armstrong 7 0 89 3 203     0 
T Armstrong 19 3 441 1 49     12 
B Arnall 35 5 749 0 0     21 
S Arudpragasm 28 7 117 38 1097     2 
M Atkinson 

7 1 106 0 0 10 
w
k 2 

s
t 0 

H Bachmann 6 0 126 0 0     0 
J Bachmann 25 0 333 26 581     2 

P Backhouse 43 3 523 90 1401 2 
w
k  

 
9 

C Baillie 0 0 0 0 18     0 
S Baker 8 2 26 4 126     2 
J Baker 2 0 30 3 46     1 
P Bakker 5 1 16 5 181     3 
F Barbeler 26 2 337 4 151     5 
J Barker 

85 12 582 11 359 4 
w
k  

 
19 

A Barnes 16 2 103 11 121     5 
F Barrett* 1 0 3 1 7     0 

S Barrett 26 1 364 31 713 2 
w
k  

 
6 

J Barry 20 0 433 13 358     2 

M Barry 32 10 235 47 1119  
 

1 
s
t 18 

A Barton 1 0 18 1 21     2 
S Basavegowda 17 5 139 24 450     3 
J Bates 49 8 902 118 1808     15 
T Bayliss 46 2 602 1 142     6 
B Beaston 9 2 43 12 229     5 
LJ Beattie 6 2 57 7 159     1 
M Bedsen 5 0 68       0 
I Bellamy 2 1 24 0 70     0 
T Berry 2 0 40 1 42     0 
M Bertrand 14 1 122 4 73     3 
C Bezer 136 48 717 343 5110     45 
P Blood 63 3 875 2 56     18 

R Blood 58 2 965 6 39 1 
w
k  

 
18 



 

  

L Borg 2 0 9 6 59     0 
D Boulter 10 1 98 10 167     2 
S Bourne 15 1 95 1 72     0 
G Boyle 

166 8 2139 42 1062 5 
w
k  

 
51 

F Boys 11 0 321 12 266     8 
A Bradshaw 15 1 328 6 246     2 

A Bray 101 9 965 46 1550 13 
w
k 4 

s
t 26 

T Bremner 7 1 91 3 33     2 

P Brett 161 16 2851 0 1 99 
w
k 3 

s
t 38 

T Bristow 18 7 517 24 451     4 
B Brown 5 1 90 0 0     3 
B Broyd 17 3 219 21 423     11 
D Bullock 10 0 68 0 12     1 
M Burke 

3 0 65 0 0 5 
w
k  

 
0 

T Burn 1 0 14 2 24     1 
A Burns 2 0 51 0 0     0 
B Bye 3 0 40 3 84     1 
T Byrne 11 1 128 10 396     5 

T Cachalia 22 1 311 1 29 5 
w
k 1 

s
t 6 

B Caddey 1 0 4 0 0 1 
w
k 1 

s
t 0 

W Callinan 1 0 61 0 20     0 
C Camarsh 51 2 955 107 1798     19 
J Camarsh 164 17 2606 216 4322     63 
N Campbell 2 1 116 0 0     0 
S Campbell* 76 10 944 43 833     18 
J Canlas 3 0 3 0 0     0 
S Carnaffan 16 0 288 0 31     8 
M Chase 2 1 5 0 10     1 
A Chauhan 7 0 86 13 155     1 
M Chauhan 12 2 139 19 253     0 
J Cheok 2 1 1 0 0     0 
B Chiarella 13 0 166 17 268     3 
A Clarke 1 0 7 0 0     0 

J Clarke 67 19 703 132 2003 2 
w
k  

 
25 

K Clarke 
65 3 1140 3 184 11 

w
k 2 

s
t 9 

W Collins 19 2 344 3 97 1 
w
k  

 
4 

A Cornelius 89 36 843 168 3163     37 
G Cornelius 96 6 1643 49 947     56 
T Cottee-Warner 49 7 412 15 511     16 

A Cowell 13 1 175 6 120 1 
w
k 2 

s
t 3 

S Cox 92 15 935 128 2340     40 
B Craig 18 1 207 15 342     4 
C Cramer 14 5 134 1 195     0 

K Crayn 75 11 564 75 1990 1 
w
k  

 
20 

M
W Crayn 8 1 76   2 

w
k  

 
0 

S Crayn 14 2 346 4 165     3 



 

  

M Cross 24 7 387 7 149     3 
P Cross 

30 2 1270 3 91 2 
w
k  

 
15 

P Cruden 14 1 259 50 657     6 
A Cubbage 2 0 4 0 6     2 
B Curran 13 5 61 17 458     7 
J Curtin 9 1 83 13 205     4 
O Dadge 6 1 43 6 166     1 

W 
Daly 

38 1 417 26 678 5 
w
k  

 
10 

B Dash 11 4 268 0 0     2 
I Davidson 169 21 3103 123 2627     61 
S Davies 1 0 0 2 38     1 
T Davies 1 0 14 0 0     0 
T Davoren 3 1 66 1 16     0 
H De Jong 3 1 11 2 51     0 
M Dean 33 5 414 0 79     13 
H Dekoning 1 0 30 1 14     1 
D Delaney 14 2 193 30 451     9 
B Dempsey 86 8 1473 6 174     44 
J Dempsey 36 3 432 47 1046     14 
R Devine 25 5 308 25 556     7 
S Devineni 9 1 27 3 93     0 
V Dharman 6 1 29 10 287     2 
B Dibden 18 1 439 8 150     2 
K Dindayal 144 15 1611 144 2618     33 
R Dixon 9 1 66       0 
J Dobbler 7 2 137 8 171     2 
A Dodds 148 36 1998 293 4782     24 

M Dodds 31 5 450 0 6 68 
w
k 3 

s
t 4 

M Doherty 91 3 896 13 202     16 
N Donegan 9 1 152 4 112     5 
M Donegen 9 4 239 14 215     3 
T Dosen 6 1 10 0 5     1 
A Douglass 24 6 255 0 25     3 
A Dowey 63 10 719 28 638     26 
S Dunn 109 18 1060 145 3474     27 
M Dwyer 9 3 94 11 218     4 
M Edwards 1 0 25 0 0     0 
N Edwards 2 1 1 4 38     0 
S Edwards 1 0 0 0 23     0 
M Eggert 55 2 489 55 1642     10 
A Ellison 1 0 2 0 0     0 
J Ephraums 19 2 256 8 271     5 
C Evans 1 0 32 1 16     0 
C Eve 35 5 667 49 746     9 
C Ewen 7 0 26        
D Fagan 29 3 359       8 
C Fahey 1 0 5 3 58     0 
M Fahey 1 1 0 0 0     1 
S Fanning 7 1 208 3 141     0 
H Farquharson 7 1 53 4 155     4 
B Favell 4 0 108 0 0     0 

B Fillingham 18 3 202 0 0 23 
w
k 2 

s
t 0 



 

  

M Fini 27 4 401 11 324 2 
w
k  

 
6 

B Finnigan 20 2 119 1 13     3 
O Fisher 150 4 2591 65 1562     44 
W Fitzgerald 11 1 228 5 176     0 
L Flannigan 7 0 73 5 152     3 
R Fletcher 38 3 623 0 13     10 

S Flynn 92 15 933 10 130 93 
w
k 20 

s
t 0 

C Fogarty 14 4 67 22 352     2 
S Forbes 2 0 22 1 49     1 
O Forde 11 0 56 8 248     1 
C Forrest 15 1 187 7 315     5 
M Forster 23 4 529 9 209     9 

P Francis 10 0 108 2 40 7 
w
k  

 
8 

C Frankish 66 19 356 75 1884     19 
I Frankish 11 0 76 7 148     3 
M Fredericks 5 1 27 4 217     0 
A French 2 0 10 7 156     0 
D French* 

45 8 706 0 0 29 
w
k 5 

s
t 7 

F French 1 0 36 0 0     0 
B Fuller 

24 3 221 0 7 13 
w
k  

 
7 

H Fullerton 5 2 34 4 87     1 
J Gale 1 0 2 0 0     0 

EJ Galek 35 6 776       13 
P Gallichan 

39 10 1107 8 279 3 
w
k  

 
12 

R Gallichan 36 6 1181 58 1160     26 
P Gardner 9 1 32 6 220     1 
S Garry 

8 2 81 0 16 10 
w
k 1 

s
t 0 

J Gayleard 100 8 1482 38 638     47 
A Gerrand 56 7 69 19 1024     10 
N Gerrand 1 0 0 0 0     0 
J Gibson 6 2 122 10 128     3 
A Gill 3 3 19 5 47     0 
A Gill 12 1 283 0 30     2 
D Gill 4 2 13 3 87     1 

TD Gilmour 6 0 3 5 86     0 
N Gleeson 9 0 30 6 160     3 
A Gluck 2 0 18 1 34     0 
G Gomes 4 1 23 3 46     6 
A Gordon 19 2 327 1 31     1 
A Gowthorp 6 0 81 1 37     1 
C Granger 

210 22 4111 14 418 1 
w
k  

 
51 

B Greaves 22 4 236 51 462     5 
S Greaves 42 5 370 24 389     4 
D Gribben 29 3 258 2 29     9 
P Guneratnam 9 0 111 0 21     0 
B Habgood 

37 1 857 10 318 9 
w
k  

 
9 

S Halfacre 8 0 66 11 227     0 
W Hall 6 0 101 7 193     0 



 

  

B Hancock 1 0 19 1 28     0 
L Handford 1 0 0 2 32     0 
L Hardy 52 4 1005 45 1018     14 
A Harley 

28 1 413 0 87 13 
w
k 1 

s
t 4 

A Harper 15 1 152 17 449     3 

JD Harpham 81 2 1359 2 46 15 
w
k  

 
13 

JN Harpham 98 21 905 17 391 114 
w
k 7 

s
t 9 

A Harris 48 3 1339 1 16     14 
B Harrison-Smith 4 1 31 0 17     2 

B Harvey 8 0 71 7 211 1 
w
k 1 

s
t 1 

B Haughton 8 3 48 0 33     0 
A Hawkins 16 0 64 0 0     1 
D Haylen 23 1 183 18 481     4 
R Hearne 3 0 29 2 120     2 
S Herden 12 2 239 11 163     0 
L Higgins 60 4 597 85 1754     16 

R Higgins 67 6 1172 1 52 1 
w
k  

 
30 

J Hinton 86 10 1752 1 22     24 
T Hinton 45 1 676 5 163     10 

C Hipkin 99 18 868 156 3165 2 
w
k  

 
48 

C Hoffman 2 1 28 3 49     0 
Be Holland 1 0 31 0 0     1 
Br Holland 27 0 493 6 188     1 
M Holmes 21 2 121 2 143     1 
P Holmes 2 0 58 0 24     2 
B Holt 2 0 64       2 
D Holt 3 0 2 2 44     0 
P Holt 10 3 17 6 115     0 
T Holt 180 37 2642 413 7033     92 

B Hood 278 33 5624 7 191 18 
w
k 2 

s
t 82 

C Hoskins 33 1 322 2 77     4 

L Hume 40 4 514   44 
w
k 16 

s
t 1 

B Hunt 10 1 121 5 214     6 
S Hunter 39 6 584 102 1643     15 
A Hurley 5 1 147 4 93     0 
R Huxley 60 3 1381 37 880     18 
G Imhoff 68 27 308 129 2856     9 
F Iqbal 1 0 24 0 0     0 
S Isherwood 1 0 57 0 0     0 
R Islam 42 23 77 114 1687     9 
S Iyer 

4 2 245 0 0 2 
w
k  

 
0 

A James 1 0 10 0 7     0 
A Jenkins 32 3 359 64 909     7 
D Johnson 1 0 53 1 38     0 
N Johnston 

13 3 164 0 0 6 
w
k 4 

s
t 0 

J Joseph 
1 0 5 0 0 1 

w
k 2 

s
t 0 

J Kadwa 39 1 576 40 929     3 



 

  

K Kapur 4 1 18 2 67     0 
S Karim 16 2 86 23 390     4 
P Keall 5 0 57 0 0     0 
W Keall 27 1 243 5 208     5 

N Kelland 28 0 563 9 275 11 
w
k 3 

s
t 5 

P Kelland 7 0 57 2 108     1 
M Keevers 2 0 4 0 6     1 
L Kelleher 10 3 50 0 0     1 
D Kendrick 3 0 28 2 37     0 
I Kensell 27 0 737 12 373     7 

JJ Kiely 10 0 103 0 34     3 
C King 44 10 695 14 362     8 
G King 6 0 71 0 0     1 
S King 17 5 228 8 282     3 
A Knapp 47 6 799 3 163     12 
T Knapp 10 0 81 11 176     8 

D Knock 29 4 311 2 24 1 
w
k  

 
2 

S Komman 40 1 266 0 21 7 
w
k  

 
6 

M Koureas 0 0 0 2 53     0 
D Kraus 2 0 27 0 26     0 
A Krishnan 15 4 169 17 482     8 
A Krishnasway 86 4 1576 0 22     25 
E Kuchey 9 3 64 9 185     3 
S Kumar 1 0 8 0 0     0 
P Langtry 75 31 517 89 1970     28 
O Lee-Young 17 2 279 1 54     5 
A Lees 6 1 143 0 0     0 
E Lees 3 0 63 3 123     1 
J Lees 7 0 79 4 156     1 
S Lees 27 3 766 52 900     10 
W Lewis 16 7 57 36 758     4 
A Lidbury 9 0 186 3 48     3 
C Lim 1 0 9 0 0     0 
J Lloyd 

375 24 7225 13 382 19 
w
k 1 

s
t 121 

J Luke 61 15 442 47 1200     16 
J Lyons 21 4 293 0 65     5 
H MacDonald 204 14 2525 184 2169     18 
T Mackay 2 1 103 2 39     0 
M Mackenzie 144 14 3052 169 3620     40 
M Magee 5 1 76 4 120     4 
G Maguire 5 0 66 4 121     1 
A Malik 10 5 49 5 133     2 
Z Malik 19 1 497 34 405     9 
P Mallyon 121 58 584 305 5306     22 
M Mamo 6 0 44 1 43     1 
R Manchester 30 10 100 69 1302     1 

TC Mandleberg 44 6 805 5 210     15 
D Manescu 5 3 9 1 4     3 
P Manoharan 7 4 39 9 251      

S Mantarro 66 4 1284 0 0 6 
w
k 1 

s
t 21 

J Marsh 1 0 10 0 0     0 
C Martin 29 9 90 32 832     1 



 

  

T Marshall 5 0 77 0 0     1 
P Manoharan 5 3 35 3 157     0 
S Matheson 27 3 478 1 51     9 

A Maxwell 129 13 2894 21 389 82 
w
k 14 

s
t 43 

C McCraith 1 0 11 0 0     0 
T McDonald 104 22 1144 107 2302     30 
A McDonnell 3 0 17 0 0     1 
N McDonnell 13 1 197 0 0     2 
S McDowell 12 0 43 0 11     3 

L McElduff 7 0 92 0 0 3 
w
k  

 
2 

R McElduff 19 3 409 1 68     2 
S McElduff 1 0 15 0 0     1 
R McEvilly* 12 0 364 1 52     4 

R McFadyen 35 7 295 1 52 15 
w
k  

 
4 

J McGrath 2 0 1 0 18     1 
C McKay 228 20 4296 19 528     61 
F McKenna 0 0 0 3 10     1 
N McLeod 6 0 241 12 250     0 

DF McVey 11 2 27 8 209      

L Mead 6 0 185 0 0 1 
w
k  

 
1 

P Mees 38 6 356 0 0 47 
w
k 10 

s
t 2 

A Meggarity 8 1 16 8 231     0 
L Miletic 4 0 6 0 19     1 
B Millar 18 0 200 28 561     5 
B Miller 3 0 10 0 0     3 
C Miller 29 2 310 16 676     10 
G Minhas 8 2 29 4 110     1 
I Minhas 8 0 37 9 249     1 
J Molloy 18 5 35 43 765     2 
S Moore 21 3 175 24 521     9 

A Morris 41 6 302 1 36 16 
w
k 4 

 
4 

C Morris 7 0 21 0 14     3 
P Morrow 

15 2 218 2 11 8 
w
k 2 

s
t 0 

A Mortimer 21 2 135 32 603     7 
E Mudaliar-Bek 8  76 0 17     1 
C Myers 21 1 524 9 233     12 
S Myers 179 17 2998 183 4092     58 
N Mytkowski 52 3 872 52 912     18 
D Nagy-Horty 6 1 68 8 255     1 
D Naughton 303 35 7916 129 2226     190 

T Naughton 66 19 611 0 0 102 
w
k 10 

s
t 7 

JT Needham 24 1 447 2 30 14 
w
k 3 

s
t 1 

J Nelson 3 2 52 3 50     0 
P Nirmalendran 78 12 967 95 1882     25 
A Noonan 17 0 197 0 0     3 
C Oakley 7 1 51 0 28     2 
P O’Byrne 27 3 291 36 972     16 
L O’Connor 31 4 501 0 51     8 



 

  

P O’Farrell 16 2 120 1 24 9 
w
k 1 

s
t 0 

S O’Farrell 15 0 86 4 71     0 

L O’Hare 96 18 916 194 3292 5 
w
k  

 
39 

T O’Malley-Jones 7 3 62 3 21     1 
P O’Neill 2 0 21 0 0     0 
N Ogden 10 1 108 18 317     6 
A Ostowari 12 3 41 8 295     1 
N Papastamatis 29 5 557 14 504     10 
P Parbury 3 0 34 1 39     2 
R Patel 25 1 358 5 266     4 
U Patel 5 1 12 1 90     0 
J Pattanayak 11 1 337 12 269     4 
M Paul 8 2 64 3 211     1 
J Peddada 29 4 166 0 22     7 
T Penman 1 1 65 0 0     0 
S Perry 12 0 177 0 28     3 

D Peter 22 3 351 2 126 1 
w
k  

 
6 

E Petrie 3 0 14 0 0     1 
I Phelps 82 6 1507 9 167     35 
J Phillips 1 0 14 3 30     0 
C Pike 16 5 65 16 356     9 

JP Pipolo 9 1 98   1 
w
k 1 

s
t 3 

D Plank 7 1 10 7 232     1 
J Plummer 10 0 148       1 
B Poder 58 12 279 56 1524     2 
D Poder 11 2 224 7 139     4 
M Potts 63 5 976 49 1218     13 
A Power 3 1 126 3 88     0 
K Pradeep 9 1 107 14 291     1 
B Preece 13 1 77 11 195     0 
C Preston 47 13 253 79 1596     14 
B Priest 7 1 144 0 22     0 
M Punch 9 0 244 12 142     3 
L Putnam-Gray 50 14 527 104 2032     34 
R Pym (Jnr) 20 7 192 22 661     3 
T Pym 11 1 165 0 14     2 

R Quail 14 4 68   6 
w
k 4 

s
t 0 

C Rae 4 0 28 2 67     0 
Z Rae 5 0 71 5 113     1 

S Rahmany 9 0 151 2 25 2 
w
k  

 
0 

SP Rangarajan 8 0 278 9 179     0 
R Ravi 13 0 354 15 277     9 
P Rayner 30 3 602 42 975     7 

GP Read 6 0 132 7 140     1 
CG Reed 11 1 73 4 298     2 
S Rickard 15 2 214 7 261     3 
J Rigon 18 1 324 0 27     7 
N Rindani 6 1 88 0 0     0 
P Ritchie 27 4 591 19 442     9 
J Rixon 

107 7 1849 11 308 34 
w
k 2 

s
t 28 



 

  

M Rixon 52 5 672 8 218     19 

M Roberts 3 0 187   3 
w
k 1 

s
t 0 

A Robertson 12 5 83 18 305     9 
C Robertson 142 49 843 234 5543     27 
M Robinson 20 2 150 14 674     5 
M Rogers 12 2 319       4 

M Rogers 10 1 34   5 
w
k 2 

s
t 1 

S Rogers 72 4 899 21 529     5 
S Rowe 53 7 849 94 1701     21 
H Roxburgh 3 0 41 0 0     0 
J Ryan 

11 5 35 0 0 1 
w
k  

 
0 

N Sabine 44 10 283 74 1696     10 
J Salmond 3 1 14 1 39     0 
Y Samant 16 0 204 13 226     2 
G Sansom-Sherwill 20 4 58 3 76     1 
I Sarfraz 9 4 24 42 382     3 
J Sargeant 27 6 130 42 953     10 

W Savage 6 1 25   1 
w
k 1 

s
t 3 

M Sawyer 2 0 41 0 11     1 
J Scarcella 121 17 1311 325 5255     28 
T Scarfe 1 0 51 0 40     1 
M Schaafsma 153 10 1962 7 110     22 
G Schaper* 13 2 123 0 0     2 
B Scott 465 168 3284 1116 21528     130 

G 
Scott 

19 3 419 0 0 4 
w
k 1 

s
t 8 

LA Scott 7 0 92 6 86     4 
M Scott 16 2 351 5 195     6 

E 
Scrivens 

69 4 894 3 121 7 
w
k 3 

s
t 13 

R Seymour 28 3 180 15 456     5 
J Seymour 1 0 27 2 37     0 
D Shah 6 3 17 4 169     3 
J Shah 21 1 98 4 80     2 
S Shaikh 36 4 208 37 707     10 
Y Sharif 2 0 44 1 24     0 
N Sharma 7 1 118 0 0     1 

J Sharp 141 3 2021 20 534 2 
w
k 2 

s
t 19 

N 
Sharples 

47 7 775 19 494 8 
w
k 6 

s
t 16 

H Shaw 66 9 358 71 1422     5 
J Shaw 18 9 50 22 440     1 
J Shaw 53 13 205 38 1035     10 
R Shearer 1 0 8 0 0     1 
R Sheather 12 0 68 0 0     1 
T Sherrah 29 1 269 18 458     9 
J Shingler 7 2 117 11 214     0 
D Shotten 1 0 5 1 43     0 
Al Sidhu 28 12 119 59 1293     4 
S Sidhu 20 1 407 3 23     8 
A Sierakowski 1 0 23 0 0     0 
D Simmons 6 0 3 3 58     1 



 

  

P Sinclair 66 13 721 94 1414 1 
w
k  

 
21 

H Singh 1 0 0 3 32     1 
J Singh 8 2 70 13 285     5 
A Sirrpi 43 1 521 11 327     4 
I Skinner 21 0 503 37 588     7 
R Skinner 29 2 375 4 85     11 
K Slade 22 5 152 58 1209     7 
P Slater 31 3 376 19 329     10 
S Sloane 2 0 24 1 27     0 
C Slocombe 1 0 0 0 0     0 
A Smith 4 0 76 4 91     1 
Ad Smith 5 0 71 2 43     1 
G Smith 

104 9 2065 0 10 19 
w
k 3 

s
t 20 

M Smith 36 11 363 0 0 29 
w
k 16 

s
t 0 

A Southcott 199 17 4189 48 897     63 
S Spencer 25 7 272 60 1228     5 

A Srivastava 6 0 69 0 97 1 
w
k  

 
 

C Spratt 2 0 18 0 0     0 
G Spratt* 1 0 27 0 0     0 
P Spruce 

48 4 628 0 19 21 
w
k 1 

s
t 11 

J Standing 26 3 407 30 718     8 
S Stewart 86 14 1147 93 2265     20 
M Stone 47 6 947 1 64     26 
T Stone 17 1 257 25 371     6 
W Story 4 1 27 0 0     0 

I Strauss 25 0 495   7 
w
k  

 
6 

H Stibbard  11 1 188 0 52     8 
S Stuart 2 0 17 0 0     1 

J Studds 17 2 360 0 27 5 
w
k 1 

s
t 3 

R Su 25 2 200 4 156     11 
S Sundar 2 0 35 0 23     0 

G Sundstrom 189 20 3375 91 1359 1 
w
k 1 

s
t 78 

B Sykes 15 1 156 1 31     3 
A Szabo* 2 0 38 0 0     0 
T Tait 24 9 256 36 816     11 

H Tamta 7 0 35   5 
w
k  

 
1 

A Tariq 6 1 18 14 256     1 
O Tatham 11 2 15 0 30     1 

D Taylor 44 5 575 0 0 30 
w
k 8 

s
t 0 

T Terrell 1 0 0 0 0     0 
P Thakur 54 6 605 39 680     9 
D Thompson* 1 0 74 0 0     0 
M Thomson 2 0 12 3 64     0 
S Tippireddy 

25 2 431 6 124 3 
w
k 2 

s
t 7 

B Tompsett 110 9 1339 14 370 3 
w
k  

 
45 

P Tompsett 80 7 1056 36 1264     20 



 

  

B Tolj 17 6 36 33 58     1 
D Toms 

26 0 485 3 44 6 
w
k  

 
6 

P Tran 11 3 96 20 305     4 
N Trumbull 45 5 444 82 1828     12 
M Tunwell 8 0 59 0 0     2 
M Turner 27 1 314 20 771     0 
H Twomey 18 0 454 2 78     3 
J Twomey* 52 1 956 2 34     22 
M Tzikas* 41 11 437 81 1241     12 
J Unwin 17 2 225 13 373     2 
H Van Ede 7 1 22 1 37     1 
H Van Heerden 16 2 526 1 11     1 
E Van Schalkwuk 52 10 174 87 1969     7 
M Varidel 4 0 53 3 114     0 
A Varkey 34 1 626 1 65     2 
S Varkey 45 5 541 1 159     9 
A Vaughan 26 6 407 21 790     2 
J Verco 

22 3 86 0 0 11 
w
k 2 

s
t 2 

B Vo 
10 2 36 0 0 7 

w
k 2 

s
t 0 

B Walsh 3 0 28        
J Warn 15 7 34 15 399     4 
M Warren 35 1 761 0 0     4 
A Watkins 13 0 170 12 335     2 
J Watts 23 4 97 5 213     5 

N Way 60 11 770 4 64 13 
w
k  

 
10 

D Webb 49 5 1377 3 45     33 
J Webb 1 0 0 0 0     0 
M Westacott 10 0 105 4 143     2 
S White 6 0 85 3 93     1 
C Whitney 42 10 686 81 1457     18 
G Wiblin 2 1 10 0 73     0 
B Wickramaratna 2 0 59 0 0     0 
D Wiffin 5 0 47 0 45     6 
A Williams 4 0 111 5 75     1 

M Wilmott 3 0 11 0 0 1 
w
k 1 

s
t 0 

S Willoughby 
146 12 1767 3 45 90 

w
k 18 

s
t 18 

T Willoughby 77 25 360 53 1305 6 
w
k 1 

s
t 24 

C Wing 34 3 902       10 
J Woodhams 12 7 47 12 354     3 
B Wright 74 4 1411 3 154     20 
M Wright 2 1 60 1 9     0 

R Wright 1 1 0 0 10 2 
w
k  

 
0 

Y You 6 0 46 0 49     0 
O Young 36 5 502 0 0     12 

 
 
* Statistics missing from previous spell(s) at the club prior to 2018/19. 

  



 

  

 
LCCC Junior Cricket Committee Report 18-19 
 
There were a number of milestones and changes in the club and Junior Cricket nationally which made for a 
very busy and active year for LCCC Junior Cricket. This season saw numbers increase slightly from in the 
vicinity of 320 to 351 memberships. The big increase was in girls cricket. For the first time in the club’s 
history we fielded dedicated girl’s teams. By season end we had 3 x teams in the NSCJA U11 Girl’s Stage 
One comp. The new CA junior formats continue to be rolled out after many big changes previous season. 
Various tweaks and changes had to do with things like ball weight and pitch length for various ages kicking 
in. Our committee’s membership is currently healthy with 14-odd members and with only a couple of spaces 
to fill in the coming season. 
 
The Junior Committee nominated this season as having a “skills focus” and for this reason we enacted a 
policy of making sure that teams where run with fewer numbers rather than greater. This was so that we 
could ensure as many kids had the longest game time possible. While this meant that some teams had to 
scratch around for players when absences occurred, we were very happy with the general result that all kids 
got a decent hit and bowl in our teams. We are hoping and anticipating that this will have benefits in the 
future in terms of increased skill levels, more retention of players and ultimately more games won. 
 
We made the decision not to offer the CA “Master Blaster” program to U8 players. Instead we put all our U8 
players into a 2nd division of U9s. This was very successful and reports are that the kids had a create time 
and developed well in this more competitive environment. This was similar to other clubs in the NSJCA who 
had the same concerns as we did about that program. These concerns are mostly centred around the by 
product of these CA programs that it delays and hinders the kids progress as cricketers compared to the 2nd 
division U9 comp where they can play proper games. The CA program also hinders our ability to identify 
and train up volunteers and also it dilutes the children’s concept of their association with LCCC as their 
home club, a loyalty that means we easily loose kids to other sports as a result. We see all these factors as 
directly threatening the clubs future. We propose to not offer the CA program in 2019-20 also. The younger 
Junior Blaster program was offered, but this only because in reality we run it in its entirety and CA have 
really nothing to do with it. All that happens there is that CA takes a cut of the membership fee which is not 
ideal but we have decided to accommodate this for the sake of compliance to CA. 

 
 



 

  

 
 
 
 
A big problem last year was our U17 teams who did not have official training and who were not managed 
sufficiently well. This year we put in place a range of new measures to help retain U17 players and continue 
their growth and skills. We had them train with the Seniors at Riverview turf nets, we had a selection 
committee and they were trained in a planned way by my self as U17 coach where I concentrated specifically 
on tailored programs for each player’s needs. It was a great season with the boys enjoying each other’s 
company and playing at a high standard. The ultimate plan here is to retain members as they transition into 
the Seniors and I believe we went a long way towards achieving that goal. 
 
As mentioned we had great success with our first ever dedicated girl’s teams. The culture and positivity 
around this development was instilled by the efforts of some specific dedicated volunteers in the club, 
namely John O’Farrell, David Micheletti. Damian Barbeler and Brendan Hood all of whom put in extra 
effort to make sure that the experience for our new female recruits was positive and enriching. The girls had 
an excellent time and we had and great retention rate across the season so that the girl’s number increased 
and LCCC also won both the Spring and Summer competitions, with all our teams dominating the ladders.  
 
We had excellent success in competition terms with our U10 teams also. 2 x U10 teams contested a Grand 
Final this year. Our other age groups where very competitive with only the slim numbers having the 
occasional damping effect on our talent pool in each team. Our U15 Slater Team once again got to the Grand 
Final but Sadly this year did not go all the way. They can however be proud of the achievements they have 
attained year on year in that team. 
 
An area of concern is our U15 representation for next season. This is a problem across the NSCJA and low 
numbers ini tis case probably stem from competition changes that occurred when that cohort was in U12 that 
meant many left to play other sports. I have been discussing the issue with Mat Rogers who has agreed to 
help generate some interest for next season to try to get a team up and running. 
 
A big administration task this season was to adopt and enact the new Cricket Australia child protection 
policy. This was a large change at the club as it required a large number of parents to take up a volunteer 
Working with Children check from the state government. Thanks must go to Paul Hinton who was largely 
responsible for running our compliance on this issue. There are a few loose ends to chase in 2019-20 but we 
at least have a majority of our volunteers compliant at this point in time. 
 
This year for the first time LCCC ran a training day event for coaches and managers. We were fortunate to 
have Ash Doolan, 1st Grade Cricketer and professional coach as a guest to teach our volunteers. It was a 
very successful morning and many reported how helpful and productive the event was. 
 
 
 
Damian Barbeler 
 
Junior’s Convenor 18-19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

  

 

SPONSORS 2018/19 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Belle Property Lane Cove / Hunters Hill 
 
lanecove.info@belleproperty.com 
(02) 9087 3333 
www.bellepoperty.com./lanecove 
 
Belle Property Lane Cove / Hunters Hill is Lane Cove 
Cricket Club’s major sponsor for 3 seasons, 
commencing 2015/16. We recommend all Lane Cove 
Cricket members, family and friends contact Simon 
Harrison at Belle Property for any of your buying / 
selling / renting real estate needs. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Kookaburra 
 
info@kooka.com.au 
03 8552 1111 
www.kookaburra.biz 
 
Lane Cove Cricket Club is delighted to announce 
Kookaburra as a major sponsor of the club for the 
2015/16 season. Kookaburra provided Lane Cove with 
its new playing and training gear for the season, and is 
the recommended choice of cricket gear for the club. 
Contact Cameron Eve for any of your Kookaburra 
needs. 
 
 
 

 
 

 

The Longueville Sporting Club 
 
gm@longuevillesportingclub.com.au 
(02) 9427 2210 
www.longuevillesportingclub.com.au 
 
Lane Cove Cricket Club is proud to make the 
Longueville Sporting Club its social venue of choice.  
Various functions are held at the LSC during the 
season and the players can also be found there 
celebrating after each and every match during the 
season. 
 
 



 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Storage King 
 
(02) 9420 2220 
www.storagelanecove.com.au 
 
Welcome to the largest self storage facility on Sydney's 
North Shore. We provide safe, clean, secure storage for 
your personal and business needs.  
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